Sandra Whitehead Paul Baca
Mayor W\ Y 0, Commissioner

7N /TN /1T

Amanda Forrister
Mayor Pro-Tem

Randall Aragon
Commissioner

Frances Luna
Commissioner

Morris Madrid
City Manager

505 Sims St.
Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901
P: 575-894-6673 ¢ F: 575-894-7767
www.torcnm.org

REGULAR MEETING

THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF TRUTH OR
CONSEQUENCES, NEW MEXICO, TO BE HELD IN THE COMMISSION CHAMBERS, 405 W. 3Rb
ST., ON WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 27,2021; TO START AT 9:00 A.M.

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. INTRODUCTION
1. ROLL CALL
Hon. Sandra Whitehead, Mayor
Hon. Amanda Forrister, Mayor Pro-Tem
Hon. Paul Baca, Commissioner
Hon. Randall Aragon, Commissioner
Hon. Frances Luna, Commissioner

2. SILENT MEDITATION
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

C. PUBLIC COMMENT (3 Minute Rule Applies)
D. RESPONSE TO PUBLIC COMMENT
E. CONSENT CALENDAR
1. City Commission Regular Minutes, January 13, 2021

2. Acknowledge Regular Public Utility Advisory Board Minutes, November 16, 2020
3. Subrecipient FY 20/21 2nd Quarter Reports



F. NEW BUSINESS
1. Discussion/Action: Public Appeals in regard to Electric Smart Meters.
e Ron Fenn
e Ariel Dougherty
e Lee Foerstner
2. Discussion/Action: Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Project
Selection. Traci Alvarez, Grant Projects Coordinator/Zoning Official and City
Manager Madrid
3. Discussion/Update: 2nd Quarter Revenue and Expenditures. Carol Kirkpatrick,
Finance Director and City Manager Madrid

G. ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS/ZONING
1. Discussion/Action: Resolution No. 29 20/21 Budget Adjustment. City Manager
Madrid
2. Discussion/Action: Resolution 30 20/21 Water System Asset Management Plan.
Traci Alvarez, Grant Projects Coordinator/Zoning Official and City Manager
Madrid

H. REPORTS
1. City Manager
2. City Attorney
3. City Commission

I. EXECUTIVE SESSION
1. Limited Personnel Matters Pursuant to 10-15-1(H.2)

J. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting will be broadcast live through KCHS on 101.9 FM. The public will be

allowed to attend the meeting via teleconference using the information listed below:

Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone.
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/589434661

You can also dial in using your phone.
United States: +1 (646) 749-3122 Access Code: 589-434-661

New to GoToMeeting? Get the app now and be ready when your first meeting starts:
https://global.gotomeeting.com/install /589434661

If you do not wish to attend the meeting via teleconference, but would like to give
public input, please submit your comments to torcpubliccomment@torcnm.org, by fax
at (575) 894-6690, or a hard copy can be dropped off at City Hall, 505 Sims Street, Truth
or Consequences, NM. Please submit your comments no later than
Monday, January 25, 2021.

NEXT REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING FEBRUARY 10, 2021


https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/589434661
tel:+16467493122,,589434661
https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/589434661
mailto:torcpubliccomment@torcnm.org

CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

Agenda Item #: E.1

MEETING DATE: January 27, 2021

SUBIJECT: City Commission Regular Minutes, January 13, 2021
DEPARTMENT: City Clerk’s Office

DATE SUBMITTED: January 22, 2021

SUBMITTED BY: Angela A. Torres, Clerk-Treasurer

WHO WILL PRESENT THE ITEM: City Manager Madrid

Summary/Background:

Minutes approval.

Recommendation:

Approve the minutes.

Attachments:

e CC Minutes

Fiscal Impact (Finance): N/A

$0.00

Legal Review (City Attorney): N/A

None.

Approved For Submittal By: [ ] Department Director
Reviewed by: City Clerk [ Finance [Legal [JOther: Click here to enter text.
Final Approval: City Manager

CITY CLERK’S USE ONLY - COMMISSION ACTION TAKEN

Resolution No. -  Ordinance No. -
Continued To: - Referred To: -

[J Approved (] Denied [IOther: -
File Name: CC Agendas 1-27-2021




CITY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES
CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES, NEW MEXICO
CITY COMMISSION CHAMBERS, 405 W. 3RP st.
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 13, 2021

A. CALL TO ORDER:

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Sandra Whitehead at 9:00 a.m., who
presided and Angela A. Torres, City Clerk-Treasurer, acted as Secretary of the meeting.

B. INTRODUCTION:
1. ROLL CALL:

Upon calling the roll, the following Commissioners were reported present.

Hon. Sandra Whitehead, Mayor

Hon. Amanda Forrister, Mayor Pro-Tem
Hon. Paul Baca, Commissioner

Hon. Randall Aragon, Commissioner
Hon. Frances Luna, Commissioner

Also Present: Morris Madrid, City Manager
Angela A. Torres, City Clerk-Treasurer

There being a quorum present, the Commission proceeded with the business at hand.
2. SILENT MEDITATION:

Mayor Whitehead called for fifteen seconds of silent meditation.
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

Mayor Whitehead called for Commissioner led the Pledge of Allegiance.
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

Commissioner Luna moved to approve the agenda as submitted.

Commissioner Baca seconded the motion. Roll call was taken by the Clerk-

Treasurer. Motion carried unanimously.

C. PRESENTATIONS (10 minutes):

1. Proclamation recognizing January 24, 2021 - January 30, 2021 as
School Choice Week in Truth or Consequences, New Mexico:



CITY COMMISSION JANUARY 13, 2021 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

Mayor Whitehead presented the Proclamation recognizing January 24, 2021 — January
30, 2021 as School Choice Week in Truth or Consequences, New Mexico.

2. Presentation: Film Liaison Report:

Cary “Jagger” Gustin gave a brief presentation regarding the Film Liaison Report.
(Complete copy attached hereto and made a part hereof).

D. PUBLIC COMMENT:

Isaac Eastvold virtually addressed the Commission with comments related to:
(1) Soft Path Development of our natural history. (Complete copy attached hereto
and made a part hereof).
(2) NM bird die-offs. (Complete copy attached hereto and made a part hereof).

Rick Dumiak virtually addressed the Commission with comments related to:
(1) The Resolution the city passed regarding 630 Charles Street. He asked where
the city was at on that because he is not seeing any progress on that property.
(2) He commented on Rotary Park, and asked what the rules and regulations were
because he is witnessing trash, overnight camping, camp fires, and people
urinating and defecating at the park. He also commented that there is no signage
posted at the park.

Ron Fenn virtually addressed the Commission with comments related to:
(1) He submitted an appeal to the City Commission following the denial of his appeal
of Electric Smart Meters. He cannot locate any written procedures for appeals so
he wants to know how he is to proceed with his appeal.

E. RESPONSE TO PUBLIC COMMENT:

Mayor Pro-Tem Forrister responded to the following comments:

o Isaac Eastvold’s comments: She made a suggestion to contact Merry Jo Fahl
with Jornada because they are part of the team who are working on the foot
bridge.

e Mr. Dumiak’s comment of 630 Charles Street: It is frustrating when the
Commission approves Resolutions, and 5 months later nothing is being done on
these properties.

e Mr. Dumiak’s comment regarding Rotary Park: Maybe we could have more

police presence so we are not experiencing these problems.

City Manager Madrid responded to the following comments:

e Mr. Dumiak’s comment of 630 Charles Street: Although they might not be
happy with it, there is progress being made, and there is due process that has to
take place. It's a lot more than just taking in a piece of equipment and clearing
out trash when there are possible hazardous materials in there. Sometimes we

Page 2 of 11



Date: January 13™, 2021
Film Report To: T or C,NM City Commission

From: Cary ‘Jagger’ Gustin, Film Liaison NM Film Office
For Truth or Consequences and Sierra County New Mexico

Retribution Films LLC Movie shoot: Tor C,NM  Feature Film
Working Title: ‘Paul’s Promise”
Shoot Dates: October 25,2020 Wrap Date: November 18, 2020

25 day shooting schedule planned 17 actual shoot days in T or C
6 local residents hired for background work

35 people worked 17 days and housed locally

Pelican Spa Hotel: Rooms rented for 30 days $19,000
Holiday Day Inn Express Hotel: 30 rooms rented for 14 days
@$65 per night $27,300

Meals were catered by the productions own food truck. The production
Chef did utilize some local restaurants estimate $30 per person meal
allowance 30 x 35 people = $1050 lets say 6 meals $6300

25 Vintage vehicles rented for $50 per day

25 X $50=$1250 x 17 days $21,250
Fuel bought locally 25 vehicle with 15 gallon tanks

$2.19 per gallon regular gas say 15 vehicles used regular

15 x 15 =225 gallons @ $2.19 per gallon and 2 fill ups-------------- $985.30
Say 10 vehicles used premium gas 10 x 15 = 150 gallons
@ $2.89 per gallon = $433.50 and 2 fill ups $867.00
Old Saint Ann’s Hospital ( Austin St) location rental 10 days-------- $3000
Raymond’s Lounge location rental 3 days---------- $700
Burned House location rental ( 7" and Kopra St)

21 days @ $200 per day $4,200

Crew spending per day: Estimate $40 per day x 35 people 17 days--$23,800

Spending figures are compiled by T or C/Sierra County Film Liaison and
some items could be more or less than reported.
$107,028.05



NM Film Office Updates:

Early November 2020 NM Film Office continues to work to attract film
production to New Mexico. Work includes scaling up talent and crew base
here in the state. Now free training program for NM Background Actors.
Background acting is one way to get your foot in the door, make
connections, and become familiar with movie set etiquette. Contact the NM
Film Office for more details and information.

Intimacy Coordinator Training Program: This is a fairly new category of
Industry professionals. Creates a safer environment on set for actors
performing scenes involving physical touch, nudity, intimacy and simulated
sex, while also helping the Director achieve their creative vision.

This training is available as a resource to the Director with things like
chorography and movement coaching. The 16 week course of online training
Starts on February 7", 2021. Contact the NM Film Office for more details
And information

nmfilm.com Or by phone: 505-476-5600



Torres, Angela

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

ISAAC EASTVOLD <eastvolds@aol.com>

Saturday, January 09, 2021 8:56 PM

Torres, Angela

Public Comment for the forthcoming T or C City Commission meeting: "Soft path"
development of our natural history--(Please distribute, Angela. Thanks!

https://sierracountysun.org/feature/how—sandhill-cranes-could-retum-to-sierra-countv/

Honorable Mayor Whitehead, City Commissioners, City Manager Madrid, City Attorney Rubin,
and City Planning Staff,:

As an addition to our City and County's portfolio of economic development plans, right

in front of us is development of our unique birthright of natural history to make T or C a
renowned destination for bird watching, nature study, low impact recreation, and healing through
what the Japanese call "nature batheing.” This "soft path" to development is almost always less
expensive than the "hard path," and is sustainable for a very low, or even no, cost; but not
infrequently it is overlooked.

Andy Potter, in the above attached link to his Opinion Piece for the Sierra
Sun, has an excellent idea to help take us down the "soft path" to economic
development. Purchasing as park or open space parcels on the east shore from
Rotary Park, besides being relatively inexpensive, would strengthen the Wetlands
Element restoration around Rotary Park previously approved by the City
Commission in the 2009 Healing Waters Trail Plan. City Attorney is now
pursuing "quiet title" for the Park from the Bureau of Reclamation. Both shores of
the Rio Grande in the vicinity of Riverbend and Rotary Park, therefore, would
become a potent visitor destination for birdwatchers, natural sciences students,
and residents wanting inspiration and to just relax in a quiet natural environment.

The bridge crossing sites being considered in the proposed Turtleback
Trails planning effort, if integrated sensitively, could be compatible with, and
even enhance, this soft path of development.

Just protecting both banks of the River in this area would create a highly
successful visitor destination to increase the tourism sector of our economy. Users
of Riverbend would be delighted, as would Rotary Park users and nearby
residents, just as they are now by the occasional sighting of great blue herons and
deer across the River.

Were you aware that bat tourism organizations exist world wide, and will
direct their members to sites which are protected? Examples of bat tourism exist
at Carlsbad Caverns National Park and the Turner Enterprises magnificent bat
cave in their Armendaris Range property. These famous bat tourism destinations

1



could guide T or C in sensitively developing their own populations of bats
for tourism.

I have observed that large migrating flocks of both swallows and bats spend
considerable time up and down river from Rotary Park, flying back and forth low
over the river, to re-fuel on the swarms of flying insects. Besides helping to
control insect populations, this key re-fueling area helps these animals to put on
enough tiny bits of fat sufficient to continue their long migrations up River for
breeding, and back down River to Mexico with their juveniles for the winter.

These precious kinds of places along the Rio Grande are essential to prevent
the kind of massive bird die-offs we saw this past fall in New Mexico. The
carcasses--mostly swallows--gathered at White Sands and sent by USFWS to the
USGS lab in California showed that the animals were completely emaciated, and
had no fat whatsoever in their tiny bodies. They just starved to death.

Preserving both shores of the River at Rotary Park would be a substantial
mitigation helping these animals, and other migratory species, to prepare to
continue their long journeys. It would help halt their decline toward listing as rare,
threatened, or endangered species, and a substantial upgrade for our partly
degraded section of the Rio Grande between Caballo and Elephant Butte dams.

If migrating species of animals along the River do become federally listed,
it would place the entire area under strict standards for their recovery. This now
can be avoided with economically beneficial mitigation measures such as I have
suggested.

Please correct me if wrong, but I believe the east shore across from Rotary
Park was at one time used for farming. Putting that use back to provide timely
food for the great sandhill cranes, snow geese and Canada geese which Mr. Potter
speaks about, would restore that traditional use. World famous wildlife refuges to
our north, such as Bosque del Apache, could guide us in this simple restoration.

"Hard path" urban development of the east shore, however, besides being
highly expensive, is also incompatible with its partial designation as a flood zone.
Extending infrastructure for "leapfrog" development across the River would be an
onerous burden on T or C taxpayers. And most T or C residents would oppose it.

Far better, then, to add to our development portfolio this obvious
opportunity to use our birthright of natural history for "soft path" development
which is both sustainable, inexpensive, and a potential boon to our economy.

Sincerely,

Isaac Eastvold, President
Chihuahuan Desert Conservancy
(505) 255-7679



Torres, Angela

From: ISAAC EASTVOLD <eastvolds@aol.com>

Sent: Wednesday, January 13, 2021 11:24 AM

To: Torres, Angela

Cc: andy Potter; Bality, Attila P; John Masterson; Merry Jo Fahl; Travis Day; Mark Hedge; Bill
Salee; Ulloa, Sylvia (Heinrich); Rebecca Dow; Bruce Swingle

Subject: Re: NM Sept. bird die-offs

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

Dear Angela,

This is for distribution to the City Commission and staff as an addendum to my testimony at their
meeting today.

It is a scientific overview from the Black Range Report of the factors which are precipitating NM bird
die-offs. Notice the recording of a 29% drop in populations. That is a huge decline, and brings us one step
closer to listing with all its unappealing consequences.

I have seen estimates that as many as 2 million individual swallows have been removed from their
population base between 1970 and today.

The City can become a positive force countering these alarming trends: 1) By adopting an Open Space
Element, long and painfully absent from the Comprehensive Plan; 2) At long last, implementing the Wetlands
Element of the 2009 Healing Waters Trail Plan to elevate Rotary Park and surrounding wetlands to their full
potential; and 3) begin dialogue with our new and current Congressional members, as well as Interior Secretary
Deb Haaland, regarding President Biden's commitment to Sen. Tom Udall's so-called "30-30 Resolution," ie,
30% of all natural areas preserved in the next 30 years.

Our River and mesa landscape between Williamsburg-Las Palomas east to the Turtlebacks and Rotary
Park-Wetlands is a jewel that TorC can proudly propose for inclusion in the 30% for preservation as an area
with National status.

Sincerely,

Isaac Eastvold, President
Chihuahuan Desert Conservancy
(505) 255-7679

<page21limage19356448.png, Black Range Report>

New Mexico Bird Die-Off

During the 2020 bird migration significant numbers of dead and weakened birds were reported from the U. S. Southwest, with very high numbers in New
Mexico. It is estimated that the number of deaths was in the hundreds of thousands. Most of the birds died during their migration and were insect-eating
songbirds. Migration is a very dangerous time for birds, but the number of deaths during this period was extraordinary.

During the second week of September the White Sands Missile Range biologists, who might find 6 dead birds in a normal migration, found “a couple
hundred”. This story, a story of greater deaths told in orders of magnitude, was repeated throughout the state. Large numbers of deaths were reported
starting in the third week in August.



Many of these deaths were attributed to a cold front which came through the state on September 9. Temperatures dropped by as much as 60° when the cold
front came through. To attribute the large numbers of deaths to this event is overly simplistic, however. (This type of weather phenomenon often causes
significant numbers of bird deaths when they occur during the migration timeframe. In August and September more seems to have been going on, however.)

Jenna McCullough, a researcher at the University of New Mexico Museum of Southwestern Biology, collected 305 dead birds at Velarde on September 14 and
found that the vast majority of them had little or no fat reserves. The graph above is “4 comparison of body mass from the birds we salvaged on 14 September
2020 with that of other Violet-green Swallows collected during fall migration across the North America, downloaded from Vertnet, an open access biodiversity
database. Both outlier points on the right refer to specimens that had little to no fat stores.” (The data behind mysterious bird deaths in New Mexico.) Birds need
significant fat reserves (reflected as “body

Bird migration is a fascinating topic and there are a variety of tools which can be used to understand it better. BirdC. ast, maintains migration forecast maps, live
bird migration maps, and local bird migration alerts. It is maintained by Colorado State University and the Cornell Lab or Ornithology.

mass” here) to migrate successfully. Many of the birds showed signs of wasted breast muscles, indicating starvation and dehydration.

There is seldom one simple answer to significant issues. The bird’s lack of body fat meant that on September 9 many of the birds may have died of
hypothermia. Not only could they not deal with the cold, they did not have the strength to go elsewhere.

Birds were dying off prior to the September 9 weather event. In fact, they were dying off during a period of very high temperatures. Recent research has
indicated that heat waves can be just as harmful as cold snaps. (Mapping evaporative water loss in desert passerines reveals an expanding threat of lethal
dehydration, Albright et al, PNAS, February 28, 2017)

Smoke from the west coast fires has been posited, by some, as a cause for the die-off, either directly or indirectly (by causing birds to leave their breeding
grounds - where they are fattening up for migration - early). There do not appear to be any data, at this time, to support that hypothesis.

The insect population throughout the world has been plummeting. For insect feeders that means less food. It is likely that less food on the breeding grounds
was a contributor to the low body mass of the dead birds.

In “Decline of the North American avifauna®, Rosenberg et al. found a 29% decrease in bird populations since 1970. This is not simply a case of a “perfect
storm” where emaciation, dehydration, and a cold front all came together. This is a case of ecological collapse.

One of the attributes associated with climate change is the increase in the variation of weather events, in terms of numbers of events and the characteristics of
the events (more hurricanes, with higher winds and more rain, for example).

The changes we have unleashed will occur over decades. In the meantime there are things that we can all do to mitigate the effect on our natural world. We
hope to cover some of those activities in future issues.

20



CITY COMMISSION JANUARY 13, 2021 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

cannot find someone who is willing to go in there and abate the property. That
was the situation for a while in this particular case.

e Mr. Dumiak’s comment regarding Rotary Park: Just because someone says
something, doesn’t mean it's true, and that is true and particular to Rotary Park.
Rotary Park is clean all the time. Our Department Director goes through there
just about every day and one of our Commissioners has also been there. That
type of condition simply does not exist at Rotary Park.

Commissioner Aragon responded to the following comments:
e Mr. Dumiak’s comment regarding Rotary Park: He visited Rotary Park and
there wasn’t a drop out of place. We also can't keep the police there 24/7. There
are going to be people who go there and use it, but the city does clean it. He did
however agree on adding signage to the park.

City Attorney Rubin responded to the following comments:
o Mr. Fenn’s comment regarding the appeal: The appeals will come before the
Commission during the next Commission Meeting.

City Manager Madrid added that the appeals will be heard in an open session, and it will
be in a hearing type environment with parameters. There are no procedures for this type
of appeal, but there will be due process.

F. CONSENT CALENDAR:
1. City Commission Regular Minutes, December 16, 2020
2. Acknowledge Regular Planning & Zoning Commission Minutes,
December 7, 2020
3. Accounts Payable, December 2020

Commissioner Luna moved to approve the consent calendar as submitted.
Mayor Pro-Tem Forrister seconded the motion. Roll call was taken by the Clerk-
Treasurer. Motion carried unanimously.

G. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
1. Public Hearing/Discussion/Action: Final Adoption of Ordinance No.
717 Authorizing the sale of real property pursuant to §NMSA 1978 3-
54-1:

Staff Presentation:

City Manager Madrid explained that this involves an exchange of property and cash of
equal value. The exchanges must be appraised, and the value must be equal. The
properties were not exactly equal in value, so cash was added into the exchange to
make sure the value was equal. The idea behind this exchange is partially an economic
development issue. The property we will be acquiring is adjacent to our race track.
Prior to COVID, we had a couple of inquiries about developing the track again. The

Page 3 of 11



CITY COMMISSION JANUARY 13,2021 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

property we will be letting go of is a potential use for an RV Park that is right off the
Interstate.

City Attorney Rubin also explained that this ordinance comes before you after several
months of negotiations the city had with Ashbaugh Construction. It seems a fairly
complicated transaction involving us swapping three pieces of property in exchange for
cash and another piece of property that we will be receiving from Ashbaugh
Construction. Section 3-54-1 explains that anytime a Municipality has property they are
disposing of that has an appraised value in excess of $25,000 we are required to go
through the ordinance procedure. This came before you in November for approval of
publication, and now we are going through the public hearing process. If the
Commission does approve this for final adoption, we still have to wait 45 days before it
goes into effect. That will give anyone who has a problem or contest with this time to file
the necessary referendum petition. The city owns 3 pieces of property which are
described as per Exhibits 1, 2, and 3. Exhibit 1 contains 7.059 acres of land. We have
the legal description, and a copy of a boundary survey plat. The appraised value for the
property of Exhibit 1 is $71,000. Exhibit 2 contains 3.319 acres of land, and we have the
legal description and a copy of a boundary survey plat for that one as well. The
appraised value for the property of Exhibit 2 is $18,500. Exhibit 3 contains 10.536 acres
of land. We also have the legal description and a copy of a boundary survey plat for that
one as well. The appraised value for the property of Exhibit 3 is $133,000. In exchange
for that we will be receiving Exhibit 4 which contains a 7.248 acre tract of land. Exhibit 4
had an appraised value of $136,000 which made a difference of $86,500 which
Ashbaugh Construction has agreed to pay in cash at the time of closing. Paragraph 3 of
the ordinance reads: Additionally, with respect to the aforesaid 2.312 acre tract known
as “EXHIBIT 2", ASHBAUGH CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC. shall agree to grant
the City an easement for floodwater control and drainage infrastructure. That is a very
important consideration for the city. We are agreeing that the property is being sold as
an “as is” condition, and we are not making any warranties. The transaction will be
closed at Ekmar, and the parties shall deliver title policies of their respective properties
to the other party.

Mayor Whitehead then opened the public hearing.

Proponents: None.

Opponents: None.

Public Presentation:

Sophia Peron stated that it was mentioned that there is an RV Park planned for the
property which is at the end of the Golf Course, and if so, is it in the Comprehensive

Plan.

City Manager Madrid responded by saying, in the Comprehensive Plan we address
Economic Development and infill as part of priorities for the community. We do not

Page 4 of 11



CITY COMMISSION JANUARY 13,2021 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

mention individual transactions or developments. The Comprehensive Plan is a concept
document, not a specific transaction document.

Commissioner Luna asked if our personal appraiser appraised only our property, and if
Mr. Ashbaugh had his own property appraised.

City Manager Madrid responded yes that is correct.
Commissioner Luna then asked about the dirt track.

City Manager Madrid explained that they have had discussions with two different
proposed operators. Before COVID one of them were operating and conducting dirt
track racing within the southern part of the state, and they wanted to add this to that
tour. When COVID started the discussion stopped, but the interest remains.

With no further comments Mayor Whitehead then closed the public hearing.

Commissioner Baca moved to approve the Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 717
Authorizing the sale of real property pursuant to §NMSA 1978 3-54-1. Mayor Pro-
Tem Forrister seconded the motion. Roll call was taken by the Clerk-Treasurer.
Motion carried unanimously.

H. NEW BUSINESS:
1. Discussion/Action: Creation of NEW Sierra County Economic
Development Organization (SCEDO): '

Commissioner Luna explained that she spoke to members of the Chamber of
Commerce, MainStreet Truth or Consequences, businesses down town, and members
of the Real Estate Board. It is evident that Sierra County once again needs to join
together to create an Economic Development Organization (SCEDO). Originally it was a
volunteer organization, and there was one member from different groups and entities
who met once a month. It eventually it led to a full time position, but the challenge was
being able to pin point what was actually was derived from that persons work. There is a
definite need for the Economic Development and working together. In the document she
presented for the packet it talks about working together to create unity, and a vision
within the community that attracts new businesses, and drive economic development
utilizing existing resources. Marianne Blaue and John Masterson who own T or C
Brewing Company have taken something that might have just been abandoned, and
made it into a real gem downtown. They have been working to try and figure out how to
target their business and lure in customers to the Brewery. She thinks that is something
Sierra County needs to do because we have so many things to offer. If we can work
together and support this, and get somebody from our Commission, she can take this to
every entity she listed, and work to try and get something together and report back to
each entity. Her goal is for the representative of that body to report back to their entity.
Long term, there are grant writers who could completely work on commission to help us

Page 5 of 11



CITY COMMISSION JANUARY 13, 2021 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

find grants so there may not be any financial resource within the next fiscal year
needed. She has the names of two different people right now that are interested in this.

Commissioner Aragon thinks this would be great for our city.

Mayor Whitehead thinks this is a brilliant idea because this is something that has
needed to happen for a while in Sierra County and Truth or Consequences. She thinks
that we have some fabulous people in our community and all of these organizations can
come together and make this happen. However, she would like to make sure that we all
work together in unity and come together as an organization. We also need to have
communication if we get money for projects. We need documentation so we can
proceed forward instead of thinking we are going to get it, and then we proceed and
there is no money.

Commissioner Luna commented that she had a meeting with Rebecca Dow and
Senator Diamond last week, and they were talking about the entities in Sierra County
needing to come together to come up with one joint plan, and request one thing from
Santa Fe because there is so little funding this year. She thinks the only time that
actually worked is when it was the hospital. We all have our own thing that attracts
somebody here whether its economic development, hot springs, hiking or hunting, and
that is where economic driving is working.

Mayor Pro-Tem Forrister thinks somebody from the South Central Council of
Governments (SCCOG) would be good on this.

Commissioner Luna responded that we could definitely have the South Central Council
of Governments (SCCOG) on there.

The Commission agreed that Commissioner Luna should move forward with the project
as the representative of the Commission.

No action was taken on this item.

I. REPORTS:
City Manager Madrid reported the following:

o He thanked our members of the South Central Council of Governments
(SCCOG) Jay Armijo and Tiffany Goolsby for conducting our Community
Development Grant Block (CDBG) Public Hearings for us. They conducted 4
hearings to obtain any public comment or input for proposed Community
Development Grant Block (CDBG) project applications for this year. They
discussed the parameters for those applications, and past projects that have
been undertaken by T or C. We will continue to accept public input for projects in
the next couple of weeks. That should be in the next agenda for your
consideration. We did not have any ideas submitted by the public for projects.
However, we will bring you some alternatives, and the Commission is free to

Page 6 of 11



CITY COMMISSION JANUARY 13,2021 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

bring other ideas to the table. If there are any ideas that are submitted, he will
bring them to the next Commission meeting for consideration, and approval of
the application itself. The Community Development Grant Block (CDBG) program
tries to approve Infrastructure Improvement Projects. Those are the most
successful in the application. There are types that are for a particular area, and
there are other types that are more beneficial to the entire community, for
instance improvements to our water systems. One thing they take into
consideration is how many beneficiaries there are, and how many people are
going to benefit. The type of community projects is an impact on the ratings.

e Our Downtown Water System Improvements Project is at a 90% design and
should be at 100% within the next couple of weeks. Once that happens, bid
documents can be prepared, and we can go through the bidding process to start
construction by early summer.

o He met with the State Office of Emergency Management regarding our Disaster
Declaration. The next step is to submit our site by site requests so we can obtain
a funding document because right now all we have is the Executive Order. Once
the site by site requests are completed and approved, they will give us a funding
document. We may qualify for more than $750,000, but we are going to have to
prove that we need it and we will do that with our cost estimates, and the repairs
that have already been done. The two biggest ones are the Wastewater
Treatment Plant for damages that occurred, and the dam that needs to be
repaired to a point that prevents the same type of thing happening in the future.
He also explained that the funds will only allow us to restore things to a pre-flood
condition.

Commissioner Luna asked if we made any insurance claims on any of the damages.

City Manager Madrid responded by saying the only thing we could have made a claim
on was the Police Department, but the dollar amount did not meet the deductible. Our
risk management policy does not cover flood events.

Commissioner Luna asked if there is an add-on we can add to our policy.

City Manager Madrid responded that he will check, but he does not think that
Municipalities are eligible for flood insurance because of the cost or liability.

o City Manager Madrid explained that he had a meeting yesterday regarding our
proposed Asset Management Plan that we will be undertaking. He gave the
Commissioners a sheet that showed the type of planning and thinking that goes
into their projects. For every project there is a strategy like this one. The Asset
Management Plan will probably be on the next agenda for approval, but this is
just for your information to see the type of thought and preparation that goes into
each plan.

Page 7 of 11



CITY COMMISSION JANUARY 13, 2021 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

City Attorney Rubin reported the following:
e None

City Commission Reports:

Commissioner Baca reported the following:
e None

Commissioner Aragon reported the following:

e There is now a coalition of the Sierra County Veterans. The coalition desired to
have an opportunity to have veterans meet once a month on the fourth Thursday
10-3 with the Veterans Service Officer (VSO) so they won't have to drive 70
miles to Cruces and back. The Olive Tree will be used for the meetings, and
Veterans can call and make an appointment to meet with the Veterans Service
Officer (VSO). So far it is working out great.

e He would like the Commission to consider a Resolution or letter of
acknowledgement thanking Denise Addy for putting on the Toys for Kids Event.

Mayor Pro-Forrister reported the following:

e She would like to get the Chairman of the boards to give the Commissioners an
overview of something that is concerning to them or things they want us to know
about that are not in the minutes.

e She suggested that Commissioner Luna reach out to Jornada to see if they
would be interested in joining the Sierra County Economic Development
Organization (SCEDO) group.

o She asked City Manager Madrid for an update on the Ralph Edwards Park.

City Manager Madrid explained that the sod on the park was delayed because of the
flooding, and they had to dry out the park. The roots have taken in the sod, and when
they measured the depth of the root, it hadn’t taken well enough for it to succeed. We
have not opened up the park yet because traffic could loosen up the sod in some areas
and cause the roots to be damaged. The park will need to be closed for at least another
month or more to make sure we have the depth of the root that we need to make sure
the roots cannot be damaged on the sod.

Commissioner Luna reported the following:
o At the last meeting she asked if the Municipal League was going to be offering
COVID Insurance. She asked City Manager Madrid for an update on that.

City Manager Madrid explained that the Association of Counties and the Municipal
League are in the process of negotiating joint coverage to propose to the Legislature.
Right now they are both separate and combining the two will save a lot of money. The
policy right now for anyone who is exposed to COVID related to work will be handled as
a workers compensation claim. Although individuals may have private insurance,
workers compensation for exposure on the job is the primary thing right now. Hopefully

Page 8 of 11



CITY COMMISSION JANUARY 13, 2021 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

by the next fiscal year we will see a combined general Risk Management Self Insurers
Fund for both cities and counties.

Commissioner Luna gave an example of why she feels the city needs COVID
Insurance. What if an employee were to get COVID at work, and then they give it to a
family member which results in something bad happening to that family member. That
could be cause for a lawsuit against the city, and that is why we need that type of
coverage.

City Manager Madrid explained that type of event would fall under our general liability
and there would have to be an element of negligence for us to be liable for that.

Commissioner Luna said that she hopes that is the way it works. However, it is her
understanding that is not the case, and insurance carriers are trying to say that they wili
not cover that because it is COVID related, just like they won't cover things related to a
flood. She just wants us to be covered, and not find ourselves in a bad spot financially if
something like that should happen.

e Commissioner Luna reported that there has been a squatter at the city arena for
over 30 days, and it does not look like it is being addressed at all. The individual
has an RV over there. They have a broken down pop-up, a truck, a dog, some
chickens, and they have made themselves right at home. It doesn't look like they
are using the utilities, but we have RV Parks that pay lodgers tax and gross
receipts who would love their business. City property isn't the place for them to
reside for over 30 days.

City Manager Madrid asked Commissioner Luna if it has been reported.
Commissioner Luna responded that she is reporting it now.
e Commissioner Luna asked if anyone had any information on the license plate
cameras that have been installed at the entrance and exit of Williamsburg, T or C

and on 3" Street.

City Manager Madrid explained that they are not license plate cameras for giving
tickets. They are for monitoring traffic.

Commissioner Luna asked what the purpose is for them.

City Manager Madrid explained that they are for monitoring traffic, and to record
anything that could happen in those areas.

Commissioner Luna said, so we are being watched? She then asked who is paying for
the cameras.

Page 9 of 11



CITY COMMISSION JANUARY 13, 2021 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

City Manager Madrid responded that the Police Department paid for them and we paid
for the monitors.

Commissioner Luna said that she assumes that they were included in the budget, and it
was a conversation the previous Commission knew about.

City Manager Madrid responded that it was part of the budget.

Commissioner Luna then said, so we are not gaining anything, we are just paying a
private company to watch vehicles come and go in and out of T or C?

City Manager Madrid responded by saying, no we are not paying a private company.
The video is within the city computers, but we pay a Maintenance fee to make sure that
the system stays up.

Commissioner Luna said that she is not very keen on the idea. She thinks the residents
of our community would like to know that they are being watched. She was also upset
that the Commission did not know about it because she received 3 phone calls
yesterday about them.

City Manager Madrid responded that it is a standard practice. Even the Department of
Transportation has cameras on highways throughout the state where you can get on
your phone and look at the road conditions.

A brief discussed ensued regarding the location of the cameras.

Mayor Whitehead reported the following:

e She thanked everyone for their continuous support and reminded everyone to
please wear their masks, wash their hands, stay home if they are sick and get
tested because it will help our economy by taking us from red to yellow. She
reported that the hospital also does testing on Saturdays from 9-3 and you don't
have to have symptoms if you want to get tested.

J. EXECUTIVE SESSION:
Mayor Pro-Tem Forrister moved to approve going into executive session at 10:23
a.m. to discuss Threatened & Pending Litigation (current & possible Litigation)
pursuant to 10-15-1(H.7) and Limited Personnel Matters Pursuant to 10-15-1(H.2).
Commissioner Luna seconded the motion. Rolli call vote was taken by the Clerk-
Treasurer. Motion carried unanimously.

1. Threatened & Pending Litigation (current & possible Litigation)
pursuant to 10-15-1(H.7):

2. Limited Personnel Matters Pursuant to 10-15-1(H.2):

Page 10 of 11



CITY COMMISSION JANUARY 13,2021 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

Mayor Whitehead reconvened the meeting in open session at 11:28 a.m.
Commissioner Luna certified that only matters pertaining to Threatened &
Pending Litigation (current & possible Litigation) pursuant to 10-15-1(H.7) and
Limited Personnel Matters Pursuant to 10-15-1(H.2) was discussed in Executive
Session and no action was taken.

M. ADJOURNMENT:

Commissioner Luna moved to adjourn at 11:30 a.m. Mayor Pro-Tem Forrister
seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously.

Passed and Approved this 27" day of January, 2021.

Sandra Whitehead, Mayor

ATTEST:

Angela A. Torres, CMC, City Clerk

Page 11 of 11



CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES

AGENDA REQUEST FORM
MEETING DATE: January 27, 2021 Agenda Item #: E_Z

SUBJECT: Acknowledge Regular Public Utility Advisory Board Minutes for November 16, 2020.
DEPARTMENT: City Clerk’s Office

DATE SUBMITTED: January 22, 2021

SUBMITTED BY: Angela A. Torres, City Clerk-Treasurer

WHO WILL PRESENT THE ITEM: City Manager Madrid

Summary/Background:

Acknowledge Minutes

Recommendation:

Acknowledge minutes.

Attachments:

Minutes

Fiscal Impact (Finance): N/A

$0.00

Legal Review (City Attorney): N/A

None.

Approved For Submittal By: [ ] Department Director
Reviewed by: X City Clerk [ Finance [JLegal [0 Other: Click here to enter text.
Final Approval: City Manager

CITY CLERK'’S USE ONLY - COMMISSION ACTION TAKEN

Resolution No. -  Ordinance No. -
Continued To: - Referred To: -

[J Approved (] Denied [CJOther: -
File Name: CCAgendas 1-27-2021




CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES
PUBLIC UTILITY ADVORSORY BOARD
MINUTES
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 16, 2020

REGULAR MEETING

Regular meeting of the Public Utility Advisory Board of the City of Truth or Consequences, New Mexico
to be held in the City Commission Chambers, 405 W. Third, Truth or Consequences, New Mexico, on
Monday, November 16, 2020 at 5:30pm.

INTRODUCTION:

ROLL CALL:
Jeff Dornbusch, Chairman
Ron Pacourek, Member
Gil Avelar, Member
George Szigeti, Member
Don Armijo, Member

ALSO PRESENT:
Morris Madrid, City Manager
Traci Alvarez, Grant/Project/Zoning Official
Angela Torres, City Clerk-Treasurer
Dawn C. Barclay, Deputy City Clerk

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

Chairman Dornbusch called for approval of the agenda.

Member Pacourek made a motion to approve the agenda. Member Armijo seconded the motion.
Motion carried unanimously.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

Chairman Dornbusch called for approval of the minutes of Regular meeting of Monday, October 19,
2020.

Member Armijo moved to approve the regular minutes of Monday, October 19, 2020. Member Szigeti
seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously.

COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC:

There were no comments from the public.

RESPONSE TO COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC:

There were no responses to comments from the public.



NEW BUSINESS:

Discussion/Action: Selection of Chairman and Vice-Chairman:

City Clerk Torres asked the board if they would like to vote on a new Chairman and Vice-Chairman.
Member Pacourek made a motion to nominate himself as Chairman.
Motion failed due to a lack of a second.

Chairman Dornbusch made a motion to nominate George Szigeti as Chairman. Member Szigeti
seconded the motion. Roll call was taken.

Jeff Dornbusch voted aye
Ron Pacourek voted nay
Gil Avelar voted aye

Don Armijo voted aye
George Szigeti voted aye

Motion carried with a 4-1 vote.

Member Szigeti made a motion to nominate Jeff Dornbusch as Vice-Chairman. Chairman Dornbusch
seconded the motion. Roll call was taken.

Jeff Dornbusch voted aye
Ron Pacourek voted nay
Gil Avelar voted aye

Don Armijo voted aye
George Szigeti voted aye

Motion carried with a 4-1 vote.

Discussion/Action: Residential Solar Generation Limits:

The Board discussed several options without coming to a formal decision. It was agreed that more
research must be done. Member Szigeti recommended doing away with the 90% limits for the home
owners, and revisiting the 664 Ordinance. They should also look into the terms on the end of the year
buy-back and reconciliation.

Vice-Chairman Dornbusch suggested they table this item and visit it at the next meeting.

Chairman Szigeti asked City Manager Mr. Madrid if he could visit with Electric Division Director Easley to
gather information to present at the next PUAB meeting. The information gathered will help formulate
a motion to present to the City Commission.

City Manager Madrid suggested that he and Chairman Szigeti (who can act as the Boards representative)
schedule a meeting with Electric Division Director Easley and City Attorney Rubin so they can identify
the issues that need to be addressed, and then a draft can possibly be presented at the next PUAB
meeting.



Vice-Chairman Dornbusch and Chairman Szigeti commended City Manager Madrid’s suggestion.
No further discussion ensued.

Review/Update: Update Regarding AMI Meters:

Vice-Chairman Dornbusch asked City Manager Madrid for an update on the AMI Meters.
City Manager Madrid responded that he estimates about 1,500 AMI Meters will have been installed by
the end of the week. That puts the installation to about a third, or half way through completion. Three

(3) written objections have been received due to limited access to the property, and the meters are on
schedule with no major issues.

Vice-Chairman Dornbusch inquired if any research has been done on the increased revenue that the
meters will be bringing in.

City Manager Madrid responded an evaluation will be conducted once all meters have been installed,
and with a full month of service completed. This will help to establish a usage trend to make a
comparison. He then reported that the city should be awarded for a grant from the Water Trust Board
for a replacement program for the Water Smart Meters.

Vice-Chairman Dornbusch inquired if meters can be linked to personal cell phones.

City Manager Madrid confirmed that they can. Instructions can be obtained from the utilities and/or
billing department.

No further discussion ensued.

Discussion/Action: Set Date & Time for Next Meeting:

Chairman Szigeti made a motion to schedule the next meeting on Monday, December 14, 2020 at 5:30

pm. Chairman Dornbusch seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously.

COMMENTS FROM THE BOARD:

Member Pacourek made reference to the June 2016, July 2019, and August 2020 rate sheets. He
pointed out the Energy Cost Adjustment has not been re-calculated since 2016. He made comparisons
to influx in gas and fuel rates. He thought it would be wise to re-evaluate twice a year.

Member Pacourek also had a comment that was delivered as a question.

City Clerk Torres reminded Member Pacourek that all questions must be asked outside of the board
meeting with the suggestion to contact City Manager Madrid or the Utility Office.

Member Pacourek redirected his question and stated it fooks like it hasn’t been done.

COMMENTS FROM STAFF:



City Manager Madrid reported that the overall utilities have been in good shape during this pandemic.
He will provide an update on the back stations and the operation of the effluent system at the next
meeting.

ADJOURNMENT:

Member Dornbusch moved to adjourn meeting. Meeting was adjourned.
PASSED AND APPROVED ON THIS 19'" DAY of JANUARY 2021.

Georgé/ S&étl Chirman
Public Utility Ad isory Board




CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES
AGENDA REQUEST FORM

MEETING DATE: January 27, 2021 Agenda Item #: E_S

SUBIJECT: Subrecipient FY 20/21 2" Quarter Reports
DEPARTMENT: City Manager’s Office

DATE SUBMITTED: January 20, 2021

SUBMITTED BY: Tammy Gardner, Executive Assistant
WHO WILL PRESENT THE ITEM: Morris Madrid, City Manager

Summary/Background:

Contract requires that recipients of Subrecipient funding submit a quarterly report to the City by the 15" of the
month following the quarter.

Recommendation:

Accept the 2" Quarter Reports

Attachments:

e Checklist
e Reports

Fiscal Impact (Finance): N/A

$0.00

Legal Review (City Attorney): N/A

None.

Approved For Submittal By: X Department Director
Reviewed by: [ City Clerk [ Finance [Legal [ Other: Click here to enter text.
Final Approval: X City Manager

CITY CLERK’S USE ONLY - COMMISSION ACTION TAKEN
Resolution No.. Ordinance No. .
Continued To: . Referred To: .
[J Approved [J] Denied [Iother: .
File Name: CC Agendas 1-27-2021




SUBRECIPIENT QUARTERLY REPORTS

FISCAL YEAR:

Reports are due by the 15th of the month following the quarter.

2020/21

Updated: 01/05/21

Linda DeMarino 740-6180

1st Quarter: JUL, AUG, SEP

2nd Quarter: OCT, NOV, DEC
3rd Quarter: JAN, FEB, MAR
4th Quarter: APR, MAY, JUN

Copies to City Mgr. & Commission
Copies to City Mgr. & Commission
Copies to City Mgr. & Commission
Copies to City Mgr. & Commission

Exception: 4Q report due 06/04/2021 1sT QTR. 2ND QTR. 3RD QTR. 4TH QTR.
REPORT REPORT REPORT REPORT

NAME OF ORGANIZATION ALLOTMENT YES NO YES NO YES NO YES NO

(SUBRECIPIENT FUNDS)

Companion Animal Action Team/CAAT $2,500.00 X 91 X 1/6

Majie Powey 740-0421

Domestic Abuse Intervention Center $2,500.00 X 10/9 X 17

Blanca Chavez 894-3557

Matthew 25 Food Pantry $7,860.00 X 102 X 14

Dawn Jensen 847-785-9498

SJOA / Sierra Joint Office on Aging $50,000.00 X 10721 X 15

Joe McClintock, Susan Penner 894-6641

The Club of Sierra County $20,000.00 X 10/6 X 14

Rebecca Dow 575-571-1056

(OTHER FUNDS)

Geronimo Springs Museum $5,000.00 X 9728 X 1/a

Marilyn Pope 894-6600

Geronimo Trail Scenic Byway $5,000.00 X 10/13 X 111

LaRena Miller 894-2255

MainStreet Truth or Consequences $45,000.00 X 929 X 14



JEGETVE

N 06 2021

COMPANION ANIMAL ACTION TEAM
PO BOX 512
WILLIAMSBURG, NM €7942 .Y AN

Na
SUBRECIPIENT GRANT

FY 2020/21
(2nd) QUARTER INVOICE

Date of Invoice: 12/05/2021
Invoice Amount: S 625.00

Submit To: City of Truth or Consequences
ATTN: City Clerk’s Office
505 Sims Street
Truth or Consequences, NM 87901

Allocation Amount: $2500.00
Quarter Draw: $625.00

Please send payment to: COMPANION ANIMAL ACTION TEAM
PO BOX 512
WILLIAMSBURG, NM 87942

Thank you,

Sigwnature of Authorized Representative

MAJORIE E POWEY
575-740-0421



2ND QUARTER RECEIVED JAN 06 202

&

SUB-RECIPIENT QUARTERLY REPORT FY: 2020-21
ORGANIZATION: COMPANION ANIMAL ACTION TEAM

ALLOCATION: $2,500.00 QUARTER: 2ND

(FY Allotment, Not Qtr. Draw) {1st/2nd/3rd/4th)

(Please confine your report to a one-page "narrative" for each quarter.)

CAAT held three clinics in the 2nd quarter of 2020/2021. Clinics were held on October 19,

November 9 and December 7. We did a total of 73 animals. 23 female cats were spayed, 24

female dogs were spayed, 13 male cats were neutered, 13 male dogs were neutered.

Amy Starr, DVM with Paws and Hooves brings her Mobile Clinic here for these clinic and

continues to provide wonderful care for our clinic patients.

Clinics are held at 700 S. Broadway in Williamsburg, the building use is donated by a member

of CAAT as well as all the expenses for the building. We are continuing to hold clinics in 2021.

Masks are enforced as well as limiting people going in the building. Normally there are only

three volunteers in the building taking care of animals pre-op and post-op. We continue to

apply for grants so that we can keep our fees low. Fees cover about 40% of the clinic costs

and the balance is covered by grants including the grant from the City or T or C.

Bills from the three clinics are attached to this Quarterly Report. Thank you for your support.

SUBMITTED BY: Majorie E Powey
TYPED NAME

SIGNATURE
DATED: 01/06/21 Rev. 5/2013




PNH Mobile 2

5355 N. Mesa St.
El Paso, TX 79912
915-584-4491

INVOICE

"A Healthy Pet is a Happy Pet"

Printed: 10-19-20 at 2:54p
FOR: TorC CAAT Date: 10-19-20
PO BOX 204 Account: 15892
Williamsburg, NM Invoice: (open)
Date For Qty Description Price Discount Net Price
Services by Amy Starr, DVM PS
10-19-20 2020/10/19 224 Milleage (S/N Clinic) per mile 712.32
10-19-20 1 S/N Clinic Day 1500.00
10-19-20 1 Antech SM Fecal O&P and Giardia 34.00
10-19-20 1 Antech SM Fecal O&P and Giardia 34.00
10-19-20 24 Presurgery Intake Exam and Day H360.00 360.00 0.00 **
10-19-20 12 Feline Ovariohistorectomy 900.00 900.00 0.00 **
10-19-20 5 Feline Castration 275.00 275.00 0.00 **
10-19-20 3 Canine Ovariohisterectomy 360.00 360.00 0.00 **
10-19-20 4 Canine Castration 400.00 400.00 0.00 **
10-19-20 86 PNH2 Tramadol Tablet 50mg (1000 0.00
10-19-20 17.30 PNH2 Ketamine-Xylazine Comb inj 0.00
10-19-20 6 PNH1 Feline FVRCP Vaccine (1mi) 54.00
10-19-20 3 PNH1 K9 DAPP Inventory (1mi) 27.00
10-19-20 20 PNH1 Rabies 3yr Vaccine (10mt) 280.00
10-19-20 0.55 PNH1 Convenia Injection 80mg/ml  46.97 1.97 45.00 **
10-19-20 3.65 PNH1 Metacam/Loxi Injection 5Smg/ 67.75 16.75 51.00 **
Services by
10-19-20 #1487 Check payment -2737.32
Old balance Charges Payments Discount New balance
0.00 2737.32 2737.32 2313.72 ** 0.00

Your invoice total reflects our Client Class 1 discount.

Reminders for: 2020/10/19 Last done
10-19-21 Antech SM Fecal O&P and Giardi 10-19-20
10-19-21 MVC Exam W/Vaccines 10-19-20

Thank you for letting us care for your pet(s)! Refer a new client and get $20 off your next

visit.



We will not process any type of credit card transaction without proper form of card
holder's |.D. present.

We do not give refunds or reimbursements for professional services rendered, deposits
on surgeries/major procedures or inventory items that have left the facility. Further
charges such as lab tests, radiology, hospitalization, anesthesia and pharmacy items not
posted at the time of discharge may be billed later. We do require a 24 hour advanced
notice on all/any cancellations. $25 cancellation fee will be charged on all No show less
than 24 hours notice and surgery deposits will be forfeited.

We appreciate your understanding.

The FREE New Pet Preventative Care Exam is a one time use only promotion. If you
have received this discount during your visit please note that you will be charged at your
next visit for an exam.

Also, check out our website (www.paws-n-hoovesvetclinic.com), online pharmacy,
Facebook, YouTube, Pinterest, SnapChat and Linkedin!

Do you have additional questions? Call us at Paws N' Hooves Mobile Veterinary Services
(915) 490-4849 or Mesa Veterinary Clinic (915) 584-4491.



INVOICE

PNH Mobile 2

5355 N. Mesa St.
El Paso, TX 79912

915-584-4491

"A Healthy Pet is a Happy Pet"

Printed: 11-09-20 at 3:24p

FOR: TorC CAAT Date: 11-08-20
PO BOX 204 Account: 15892
Williamsburg, NM invoice: (open)

Date For Qty Description Price Discount Net Price
Services by Amy Starr, DVM PS
11-09-20 2020/11/09 224 Milleage (S/N Clinic) per mile 712.32
11-09-20 1 S/N Clinic Day 1500.00
11-09-20 25 Presurgery Intake Exam and Day H375.00 375.00 0.00 **
11-09-20 25 Scan for Microchip 0.00
11-09-20 25 Client Information Verified 0.00
11-09-20 25 Pet pic taken/Photo waiver signed 0.00
11-09-20 25 Recommend Our Online Pharmacy 0.00

Our inner-clinic on-line pharmacy is located on our website. Please check us out!

You can get all of your regular prescriptions, often at a less expense! Plus, it is

safe and reliable! Go to our website: www.paws-n-hoovesvetclinic.com and look

at the top of the screen for PHARMACY, then register. Once registered (may

take a day), you will be able to see all of the medications available to you. These

medications and prescription foods will be delivered directly to your home

address. By choosing this method, instead of other less reliable online

pharmacies, you are ensuring accurate and legal medications are given to your

pet.

Please be aware that there is a prescription fee of $13 in the event that a

prescription for medication is requested through any/afl pharmacies other than

our own. Our prices are price matched with the most common online pharmacies

and are typically cheaper. For safety reasons, purchasing medications through

unauthorized distributors is strongly discouraged because it is unknown how and

where these companies get them and they could potentially be counterfeit,

tampered with, or expired.
11-09-20 25 Recommend Oravet Dental Chews 0.00

As discussed during your visit, it is vital to brush your pet's teeth and give dental
chews to prevent tartar, dental disease and gingivitis. These issues can lead to
infections in the rest of the body and other organs including the heart, kidneys,
and liver. As the bacteria and tartar build, it will cause inflammation in the gums
(gingivitis) and then proceed up into the bone that holds the teeth. Once in the
bone, the bacteria eats away at the bone and causes permanent damage. These
processes are painful and dangerous to your pet's health. Your pet may not be
able to show you that he/she is in pain, so it is up to you to be consciences and
prevent these painful procedures before they occur. Brush your pet's teeth daily,
give one Oravet Dental Chew daily, and schedule your pet's dental cleaning with
us once a year.



11-09-20 25

11-09-20 3
11-09-20 6
11-09-20 10
11-09-20 5
11-09-20 104

11-09-20 19.50
11-09-20 2.10
11-09-20 10
11-09-20 9
11-09-20 22
11-09-20 1

Services by Amy Starr, DVM RX
11-09-20
11-09-20
11-09-20
11-09-20
11-09-20
11-09-20

OO,

Services by

11-09-20 #1488

Recommend Brushing Teeth/Tooth

Feline Castration 165.00
Feline Ovariohistorectomy 450.00
Canine Ovariohistorectomy 1100.00
Canine Castration 500.00
PNH2 Tramadol Tablet 50mg (1000

PNH2 Ketamine-Xylazine Comb inj

PNH1 Metacam/Loxi Injection 5mg/ 44.50
PNH1 Feline FVRCP Vaccine (1ml)

PNH1 K9 DAPP Inventory (1ml)

PNH Rabies 1yr

Earmite Treatment

PNH1 Elizabethan Collar #7.5
PNH1 Elizabethan Collar #10
PNH1 Elizabethan Collar #15
PNH1 Elizabethan Collar #20
PNH1 Elizabethan Collar #25
PNH1 Elizabethan Collar #30

Check payment

0.00
165.00 0.00 **
450.00 0.00 **
1100.00 0.00 **
500.00 0.00 **

0.00

0.00
22.00 22.50 **

90.00

81.00

308.00

12.00

60.00
60.00
70.00
75.00
80.00
17.00

-3087.82

Old balance Charges Payments Discount
0.00 3087.82 3087.82 2612.00 **

Your invoice total reflects our Client Class 1 discount.

Reminders for: 2020/11/09 Last done
11-09-21 PNH Rabies 3yr
11-09-21 MVC Exam W/Vaccines 11-09-20

New balance
0.00

Thank you for letting us care for your pet(s)! Refer a new client and get $20 off your next

visit.

We will not process any type of credit card transaction without proper form of card

holder's |.D. present.

We do not give refunds or reimbursements for professional services rendered, deposits

on surgeries/major procedures or inventory items that have left the facility. Further
charges such as lab tests, radiology, hospitalization, anesthesia and pharmacy items not

posted at the time of discharge may be billed later. We do require a 24 hour advanced

notice on all/any cancellations. $25 cancellation fee will be charged on all No show less
than 24 hours notice and surgery deposits will be forfeited.

We appreciate your understanding.

The FREE New Pet Preventative Care Exam is a one time use only promotion. If you

have received this discount during your visit please note that you wili be charged at your

next visit for an exam.



PNH Mobile 2

5355 N. Mesa St.
El Paso, TX 79912
915-584-4491

FOR: TorC CAAT
PO BOX 204

INVOICE

“A Heaithy Pet is a Happy Pet"

Printed:
Date:

12-07-20 at 3:11p
12-07-20

Account: 15892

Williamsburg, NM Invoice: (open)

Date For Qty Description Price Discount Net Price
Services by Amy Starr, DVM PS
12-07-20 202011217 224 Milleage (S/N Clinic) per mile 712.32
12-07-20 1 S/N Clinic Day 1500.00
12-07-20 25 Presurgery Intake Exam and Day H375.00 375.00 0.00 **
12-07-20 6 Feline Castration 330.00 330.00 0.00 **
12-07-20 5 Feline Ovariohistorectomy 375.00 375.00 0.00 **
12-07-20 10 Canine Ovariohisterectomy 1200.00 1200.00 0.00 **
12-07-20 4 Canine Castration 400.00 400.00 0.00 **
12-07-20 32.80 PNH2 Ketamine-Xylazine Comb Inj 0.00
12-07-20 126 PNH2 Tramadol Tablet 50mg (1000 0.00
12-07-20 11 PNH1 Feline FVRCP Vaccine (1ml) 99.00
12-07-20 10 PNH1 KS DAPP Inventory (1ml) 90.00
12-07-20 2.50 PNH1 Metacam/Loxi Injection 5mg/ 50.50 23.00 27.50 **
12-07-20 24 PNH1 Rabies 3yr Vaccine (10ml) 336.00
Services by Amy Starr, DVM RX
12-07-20 2 PNH1 Elizabethan Collar #30 34.00
Services by
12-07-20 #1490 Check payment -2798.82

Old balance Charges Payments Discount New balance

0.00 2798.82 2798.82 2703.00 **

Your invoice total reflects our Client Class 1 discount.

Reminders for: 2020/12/7

L.ast done

12-07-21 MVC Exam W/Vaccines 12-07-20

0.00

Thank you for letting us care for your pet(s)! Refer a new client and get $20 off your next

visit.

We will not process any type of credit card transaction without proper form of card



RECEIVED JAN 07 2021
Dowmestic Abuse lntervention Center /Rfl

P.O. BOX 1711
Truth or Consequences, NM €#901

SUBRECIPIENT GRANT
FY 2020/21
2 "9 QUARTER INVOICE

Date of Invoice: January 5, 2021,
Invoice Amount: $625.00

Submit To: City of Truth or Consequences
ATTN: City Manager’s Office
505 Sims Street
Truth or Consequences, NM 87901

Allocation Amount: $2500.00
Quarter Draw: 5625.00

Please send payment to: Domestic Abuse Intervention Center
P.O.Box 1711
Truth or Consequences, NM 87901

Thank you,

“™0onca Q,(Lo»u}(

Blanca Chavez
575-894-3557



RECEIVED%W 0

SUB-RECIPIENT QUARTERLY REPORT FY: 2020-21
ORGANIZATION:  Domestic Abuse Intervention Center
ALLOCATION: $2,500.00 QUARTER: 2nd

{FY Allotment, Not Qtr. Draw) (1st/2nd/3rd/4th)

(Please confine your report to a one-page "narrative" for each quarter.)

Statistical Information: Years Victimization Referral
Female- 14 Anglo-12 18-21- Emotional - 18 Police- 4 Sherriff-
Male- 5 Hispanic-4 22-40- 8 Physical -10 Hospital- Self-Referral-10
Other-3  41-59-9 Sexual- 2 Courts- 3 Friends-1
60-74- 1 Stalking- Family- Other- 1
Unknown - 1 CYFD-
Type of Contact: Volunteer Hours: Total- 1735

Orders of Protection- 3

Cell Phone- 1728

Indivudual Support Sessions- 68.25

Adminstrate- 0

Group - 127

Crisis -7

Victim Advocacy - 14

Office-

Crisis Intervention - 13

Direct Client Contact (crisis)- 7

Shelter - 3 Transportation- 0

Food -0

Legal Advocacy -15

Case Management -25.25

DVOTI Individual Sessions -5.25

October - November- Decmber-
$221.41 $239.26 $164.33

Total -$625.00
SUBMITTED BY: Blanca Chavez

TYPED NAME

DATED: \ - S-—- 3021

SIGNATURE

Rev.



Matthew 25 Foed Pantry, Inc.
405 Austin Street
Truth or Conseauences, NM 87901

SUBRECIPIENT GRANT
FY 2020/21
Second QUARTER INVOICE

Date of Invoice: January 4, 2021
Invoice Amount: $1.965.00

Submit To: City of Truth or Consequences
ATTN: City Clerk’s Office
505 Sims Street
Truth or Consequences, NM 87901

Allocation Amount: $7 860 .00
Quarter Draw: $£7 965.00

Please send payment to: Matthew 25 Food Pantry

P.O. Box 3722

-y

RECEIVED JAN 04 2071

4

Truth or Consequences, NM 7901

Thank you,

Wy

g-Financial Off'oer

R -
Phone No. §75-740.22212




SUB-RECIPIENT QUARTERLY REPORT Fy: 2020-21 @
ORGANIZATION: Matthew 25 Food Pantry, Inc. @

v
ALLOCATION: $7.860.00 QUARTER: 2" Qtr v,
(FY Allotment, Not Qtr. Draw) m }f- ; ¢ 2
(Please confine your report to a one-page "narrative" for each quarter.) {’((
Primary Purnose ’lb

Matthew 25 Food Pantry’s mission is to serve the community’s impoverished and
underprivileged. Food distribution is our paramount objective. This assistance is available to
those who qualify without discrimination based on age, race, color, sex, religion, national
origin, disability, or sexual orientation.

COVID-19 Procedures

Matthew 25 changed its procedure for distributing food baskets to walk-ins due to the
coronavirus. There is no face-to-face interaction less than 6 feet apart between Matthew 25
volunteers and the food pantry clients. The Matthew 25 volunteers always wear face masks.

Food Distribution Performance

In the 2nd quarter, food baskets were delivered to 914 households consisting of 2,104
individuals. No food baskets have been delivered to Public Housing during the Covid-19 pandemic.
During the Covid-19 pandemic, the number of households receiving food baskets is down 25%,
while the total number of individuals receiving food baskets is only down 5%. However, the number
of children receiving food baskets is up 46%. The number of seniors receiving food baskets is down 7%,
including an adjustment for the discontinued delivery to Public Housing.

Appendix 1 - Household Food Basket Distribution
Financial Performance

Matthew 25°s budget is based on all financial items being evenly averaged on a monthly basis,
regardless of seasonality or one time annual financial activity.

Matthew 25 had a $4,215.22 profit in the second quarter, against a budgeted profit of $267.50
Private donations were $12,320.84, 216% above budget, more than compensating for the Ist quarter
extremely low donations. Grants were received from Albertsons, NM Foundation, and United Way,
all not budgeted. This allowed Matthew 25 to set aside a previous large private donation ($11,439)
for the Bmldmg Fund, which had been temporally been put in the Operations account during the
1™ quarter in the event of continuing low private donations. Additionally, $5,000 was set aside for
capital improvement expenditures, primarily the replacement of aging refrigerators.

To save money Matthew 25 discontinued its internet service, Ring remote access, and security
cameras. Matthew 25 also implemented a thermostat tmperature control program will reduce its
Sull year TorC utilty usage by 31,400 to $1,800.

The strong 2nd quarter financial performance, along with the City's remaining grant year
Junding, secures Matthew 25 financially for the second half of the grant year.

Appendix 2 provides an overview of Matthew 25's 2™ quarter financial performance and the

2020/2021 full grant year budget.

SUBMITTED BY: Michael Hogg / /

TYPED NAME SIGNATURE
DATED: January 4, 2021 Rev. 5/2013




Appendix 1: Matthew 25 - 2nd Quarter HH Food Basket Distribution

Date Households
October
10/01/20 71
10/08/20 74
10/15/20 76
10/22/20
Walk-ins 96
Senior Housing
10/29/20
Total 317
November
11/05/20 95
11/12/20 72
11/19/20 111
11/26/20
Walk-ins 0
Senior Housing 0
Total 278
December
12/03/20 129
12/10/20 69
12/17/20 84
12/24/20
Walk-ins 0
Senior Housing
12/31/20 37
Total 319
2020 /2021 Year Totals
1st Qtr Totals 1,082
2nd Qtr Totals 914
3rd Qtr Totals
4th Qtr Totals
YTD Totals 1,996

Seniors

38
54
36

56

184

51
37
66

o

154

70
42
53

26
191

661
529

1,190

Adults

96
60
104

107
Closed Due to Coronavirus
Closed Due to Weather
367

107
76
117
Closed for Thanksgiving
0
0

300

159
74
85

Closed for Christmas
0
Closed Due to Coronavirus

27

345

1,236
1,012

2,248

Children

67
38
71

46

222

50
38
60

(]

148

110
33
32

18
193

941
563

1,504

Ind Totals

201
152
211

209

773

208
151
243

0
0

602

339
149
170

71
729

2,838
2,104

4,942



Appendix 2: Matthew 25 - 2" Quarter Financial Performance

Revenue
Contributions
Grant Income

Bullock's Receipt

Reimbursement
Miscellaneous

Total

Expense
Food
Rent
Utilities
Insurance

Professional Service:

Miscellaneous
Total

Net Income

Revenue
Contributions
Grant Income

Bullock's Receipt

Reimbursement
Miscellaneous

Total

Expense
Food
Rent
Utilities

Professional Service:

Insurance

Miscellaneous
Total

Net Income

Matthew 25 Food Pantry Uses Cash Basis Accounting

October

$3,560.00

$6,965.00
$0.00

$0.00
$10,525.00

$168.35
$600.00
$542.00
$0.00
$95.90
$5.39
$1,411.64

$9,113.36

YTD

$14,688.02
$13,715.00
$427.58

$51.18
$28,881.78

$1,861.88
$4,200.00
$3,237.52
$500.04
$1,235.00
$16,558.12
$27,592.56

$1,289.22

November

$2,495.34
$1,750.00
$0.00

$7.18
$4,252.52

$14.25
$600.00
$505.00
$0.00
$238.81
$11,444.39
$12,802.45

-$8,549.93

YTD Variance
(based on 6 Mths)

28.84%
209.59%
-55.46%

-88.63%
67.53%

-77.01%
16.67%
-2.78%

-25.92%
76.43%

5419.37%
65.18%

240.98%

December

$6,265.50

$5,000.00
$0.00

$19.00
$11,284.50

$844.80
$1,200.00
$582.52
$0.00
$0.00
$5,005.39
$7,632.71

$3,651.79

2" Qtr

$12,320.84
$13,715.00
$0.00

$26.18
$26,062.02

$1,027.40
$2,400.00
$1,629.52
$0.00
$334.71
$16,455.17
$21,846.80

$4,215.22

2020/2021 Budget

Annual

$22,800
$8,860
$1,920

$900
$34,480

$16,200
$7,200
$6,660
$1,350
$1,400
$600
$33,410

$1,070.00

Monthly Avg

$1,900
$738
$160

$75
$2,873

$1,350
$600
$555
$113
$117
$50
$2,784

$89.17




Slerra joint Office on Aging
360 W. 4% st
Truth or consequences, NM 7901

SUBRECIPIENT GRANT
FY 2020/21
2" QUARTER INVOICE

Date of Invoice: 1/4/2021
Invoice Amount: $12,500.00

Submit To: City of Truth or Consequences
ATTN: City Clerk’s Office
505 Sims Street
Truth or Consequences, NM 87901

Allocation Amount: $50,000.00
Quarter Draw: $12,500.00

Please send payment to: Sierra Joint Office on Aging

360 W 4 st.

Truth or Consequences, NM 87901

Thank you,

Lisa Mattingly
575-894-6641

RECEIVED JAN 05 2011



RECEIVED JAN 05 2021

Sierra Joint Office on Aging
SUBRECIPIENT QUARTERLY REPORT "o ifviteishertemons v, 2020/2021
ORGANIZATION: Sierra Joint Office on Aging
ALLOCATION: $50,000.00 QTR DRAW: $12,500.00 QUARTER: 2nd
(FY Allotment, Not Qtr. Draw) (1st/2nd/3rd/4th)

{Please detail the progress made in providing the services each quarter.)

15,132 Meals served in the drive-thru for the months of October through December
5892 Meals delivered to Homebound seniors

*#* 1810 Transportation (Rides)/local. Las Cruces rides have been temporarily suspended
Assisted Transportation - 10 Units

###¥+ 388.5 hrs. Homemaking services provided

*#**** 4 hours provided for Respite.

We are serving an increased number of meals during this time but we had to limit some

transportation services due to COVID-19. We have also repurposed several employees such as the

Homemakers to the task of "Well check” calls to ensure the seniors of T or C have food and other

items, such as toilet paper, they need but are unable to get during this time.

**&&% Due to direction given by the Aging and Long Term Services Division (ALTSD), we have

limited Homemaking and Respite services for the safety and well-being of our

homemakers as well as the seniors in our community.

SUBMITTED BY: Lisa Mattingly | Lesa L 77@%,_
TYPED NAME . SIGN 4 RE
DATED: 01/04/21 (%/% 7 iy/ Rev. 5/2014




cl
The Club RECEIVED JAN 04 2p71
122 North Broadwa y st, /IZ?

Tor ¢, NM 7901

SUBRECIPIENT GRANT
FY 2020/21
2nd QUARTER INVOICE

Date of Invoice: 1/4/2021
Invoice Amount: $5,000

Submit To: City of Truth or Consequences
ATTN: City Clerk’s Office
505 Sims Street
Truth or Consequences, NM 87901

Allocation Amount: $20,000
Quarter Draw: $5,000

Please send payment to: The Club
1300 S. Broadway St.
TorC, NM 87901

Thank you,
Charis Baxter
575-888-0174



RECEIVED JAN 04 2021

SUB-RECIPIENT QUARTERLY REPORT FY: 2020-21
ORGANIZATION:  The Club of Sierra County

ALLOCATION:  $20,000.00 QUARTER: 2nd

(FY Allotment, Not Qtr. Draw) (1st/2nd/3rd/4th)

(Please confine your report to a one-page “narrative" for each quarter.)

During our 2nd quarter The Club provided evidence based programming to youth for a

minimum of 21 hours a week. Due to COVID our class sizes varied based on social distancing

requirements our highest mentor to youth ratio during this quarter was 1:10, We provided

Club scholarships to all youth who needed assistance. We provided transportation to youth

from multiple locations in Williamsburg, T or C and Elephant Butte. The Club provided

healthy snacks for all youth who attended programming. The Club provided supplies for

educational and recreational activities such as but not limited to Cooking classes, STEM

activities, Music, Art and Service Learning. The Club provided access to the computer lab

during and outside of our normal hours for youth who needed access to internet for school.

The Club provided Tutoring and Homework Help on a daily basis and offered flexiable hours

based on what the families in our community requested. We provided a safe and clean

environment to yout. We provided trainings to staff and volunteers on programming and

proper cleaning and disinfecting practices. We also offered free karate classes over zoom

for all youth in Sierra County to take part in.

SUBMITTED BY: Charis Baxter W/@_\

TYPED NAME = SIGNATURE

pateo: V[H] 2\ Rev. 5/2013
[ |




it 1k C
7 M
GERONMO sPRINGS MUSEUM RECEIVED JAN 04 200

28 MAIN 1&
TRUTH OR. CONSEGQUENCES, NEW MEXICO 87901

SUBRECIPIENT GRANT
FY 2020/21
(2ND) QUARTER INVOICE

DECEMBER 31, 2020

i 1 51,250.00 :
lnvolceAmount&‘S\&Lf%@,O\,Mpw \ St Gonkes dxcm)lbc\%

Submit To: City of Truth or Consequences A
ATTN: City Clerk’s Office ’
505 Sims Street
Truth or Consequences, NM 87901

Allocation Amount: $5,000.00
Quarter Draw: 51,250.00

Please send payment to: GERONIMO SPRINGS MUSEUM
211 MAIN

TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES, NM 87901

Thank you,

C/BTREAS

MARILYN POPE, ADMINISTRATOR
575-894-6600 OR 575-894-9416 OR 575-740-0724



RECEIVED JAN 04 2021

SUB-RECIPIENT QUARTERLY REPORT L
ORGANIZATION: GEROIWMO SPRINGS MUSEUM ~

ALLOCATION:  $1,250.00 QUARTER: 2ND

(FY Allotmént, Not Qtr. Oraw) {1st/2ndf3rd/4th)

(Pirase confine your report to a ahe-puge “narrative” fur each quarter.)

. As for everyﬁé’ihlo has been an interesting time. The museum has baen closed,
However, membars of the Board and Volunteers have been going In at different
times to work on prejects, We hope to have naw displays and information S
avallable when re-opeming Is popssible. A new Gem and flock display Is completed,
with co-ordinating work with the Slerra County Rock and Gem Soclety. We also
recelved a wonderful display on the El Camine Real, We are re-purposing an area

for this, The bonus was that we later recalved the research materlal from

Dr. Gabrielle Palmer, who was the driving farce many years ago for this in-dapth study.
This promises to be a beautiful and aducatienal display, with the resaarch gredtly
adding to the area avallable for community membars and others to study the area.
We have ane staff member who helps with pecople naeding such information-this will be

a tremendous bonus. Through the generosity of a Board members son, we have new

speakers ready to Install with exhibits throughout the museum. These will be a real -

asset, as most of our teurs are self-guided, With COVID being a major lssue at the times,

_firoup tours will not bie likely for quite some time. We look forward to re-openingate

time of safety, Thank you for your initerest and support-we think the community will be
pleased with the upgrades made during this time.

SUBMITTED BY:  Marilyn Pope, Administiator /W\ , CD

TYPED NAME /4 s:emmzs '
DATED: 12/31/20 Rev. 5/2013




SUB-RECIPIENT DETAILS FOR 2ND QUARTER 2020-21

The following expenses were covered, fully or partially by T or C Subrecipient Funds.

CITYOFTORC 10/05/2020 #6317 $185.16
11/05/2020 #6330 170.02
11/30/2020 #6333  166.20

12/29/2020 #6352  158.61

TURTLEBACK PEST CONTROL  10/21/2020 #6324 $52.63

11/12/2020 #6331 52.63

12/09/2020 #6342  52.63

NEW MEXICO GAS  10/21/2020 #6326 $49.49

11/30/2020 #6335 49.93

12/29/2020 #6353  50.60

WINDSTREAM  11/30/2020 #6336 $219.12

ALARM SERVICES DE LAS CRUCES  11/30 #6338 $211.21

TOTAL $1,417.65

Thank you.



Geronimo Trail Scenic Byway, Inc.

P O Box 1072 . 301 S Foch . Phone (575) 894-1968
Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901

.. VE
INVOICE subrecipient grant %\E G E(‘)E .
NEY
Date 11/6/2020
To City of Truth or Consequences

For _Operating expenses

Telephone $ 184.16

Renters Insurance 62.83

Postage 4.40

$
$

Supplies (printing) $ 21.60
$

Actual total 272.99
Amount due_m per contract
Thank you

N o



Geronimo Trail Scenic Byway, Inc.

POBox1072 < 301 SFoch . Phone (575) 894-1968
Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901

INVOICE subrecipient grant

Date 12/15/2020
To City of Truth or Consequences
For Operating expenses
Telephone $ 184.48
Renters Insurance $ 62.83
Postage $
Supplies (printing) $
Actual total $ 247.31
Amount duem per contract
Thank you

N Mkl



Geronimo Trail Scenic Byway, Inc.

POBox1072 « 301SFoch e  Phone(575)894-1968 RECE|y
Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901 ED JaN 07 2021

INVOICE  subrecipient grant

Date 1-6-2021

To City of Truth or Consequences

For Operating expenses December 2020
Telephone $ 183.78

Renters Insurance 62.83

Postage

$
$

Supplies (printing) $ 339.91
$

Actual total 586.52

Amount due $ 416.66 per contract

Thank you

L miastes



RECEIVED JAN 07 2011
)

{Report is due by the 15th of the month

SUBRECIPIENT QUARTERLY REPORT following the guarter.) FY: 2020-2021
ORGANIZATION: Geronimo Trail Scenic Byay

ALLOCATION: $5,000.00 QTR DRAW: $1,250.00 QUARTER: 2nd

(FY Allotment, Not Qtr. Draw) (1st/2nd/3rd/4th)

(Please detail the progress made in providing the services each quarter.)

We closed the Visitors Center again in late October as the Covid cases in Sierra County were on

the rise. John continues to check the telephone messages each day and eturn phone calls with

the information requested. We received the invoice for our annual supply of City maps, and

as usual are paying it in three payments. The first payment was made in December. Our

renters insurance increased this year.

Total expenses for the period:

Telephone $552.42
Insurance $ 188.49
Postage S 4.40

Supplies $ 361.51

Total expenses for the quarter: $ 1,106.82

We have not re-opened the Spaceport Visitors Center as we have heard nothing from them

regarding re-opening. Many of their exhibits are interactive. We have disinfectant sprays that

we periodically use on the door handles, in the rest rooms, etc. after someone has been in the

building. We had a total of 120 visitors in October and 14 visitors in November on one weekend

when John had a call requesting he open for a group. We sent out one visitors packet, responded

to 43 telephone calls and replied to 316 email requests for information.

J o
SUBMITTED BY: LaRena Miller / )@/ o WLAL 2

TYPED NAME SIGNATURE
DATED: 01/09/21 Rev. 5/2014




P.O. Box 1602

MainStreet Truth or Consequences Truth or Consequences, NM 87901

575-740-6180

QECEITE]

d‘. L0470 !J"
By ”"V‘Zéa_
14

Bill To: City of Truth or Consequences Invoice #: 2101
Address: 505 Sims Invoice Date: 1/4/2021
Truth or Consequences, NM
C :
87901 ontact
87901
Date item # Description Qry Unit Price Discount Total
1/4/2021 City Contribution {Oct-Dec) 1 $11,250.00 $11,250.00
Invoice Subtotal $11,250.00
Tax Rate 0.0%
Sales Tax $0.00

MAKE ALL CHECKS PAYABLE TO MAINSTREET TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES.

Deposit Recelved
Total

$11,250.00



(Report is due by the 15th of the month

SUBRECIPIENT QUARTERLY REPORT following the quarter.) FY: 2019/2020
ORGANIZATION: MainStreet Truth or Consequences

ALLOCATION:  $45,000.00 QTR DRAW: $11,250.00 QUARTER: 2nd

(FY Allotment, Not Qtr. Draw) {1st/2nd/3rd/4th)

(Please detail the progress made in providing the services each quarter.)

MainStreet Truth or Consequences having been the host of Trick or Treat Downtown and Old-

Fashioned Christmas had to pivot this year. As Covid-19 made large gatherings impossible, we

worked with other groups and businesses to salvage what we could of these events.

As most businesses were closed or severely financially challenged, we reached out to the

community for cash and candy donations. With the funds and candy, we had over $1500 in candy.

Over the course of three afternoons, several volunteers assembled candy bags for the kiddos.

Upwards of 1,200 bags were made and given to the group hosting the drive through Haunted

House. By all reports, the kids were happy as many didn't expect anything at all.

For Old-Fashioned Christmas, we turned our attention to the businesses. From December 1-12,

we produced an online event called the 12 Days of Christmas- A Virtual Cash Mob. Each night

featured items from different downtown shops available for purchase through the Facebook

event. The sales from those nights totaled $12,345.69, an average of over $1000 per night. We

refer to these as the primary sales. There were secondary sales coming from people buying more

when they picked up their items and from interest generated by the Virtual Cash Mob. Those

reported sales totaled nearly $3000 bringing the total up to over $15,000. The shop owners were

very appreciative and MainStreet looks to continue Virtual Cash Mob. This project took about 240

volunteer hours. Prior to this, some of the businesses had expressed the probability of going out

of business. After the Cash Mob, they expressed a desire and ability to continue their businesses.

We continue to collaborate with the various groups to develop the brand for TorC. Colors and

designs were narrowed down and a logo was selected. Next in the process Is slogan development.

Upon completion of the brand development, we will bring it to the City Commission.

MainStreet TorC also assisted various businesses with identifying funding and_applying for

those funds. We get several calls for clarification of the requirements from the businesses and

provide the information they need to apply.

Additionally, we continue to assist new and upcoming businesses with starting up. Currently,

there are 4-5 new businesses that are being developed in the downtown.

SUBMITTED BY: Linda DeMaii

Y
RE
DATED: 01/04/21 Rev. 5/2014




City of Truth or Consequences
505 Sims Street
Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901
City (575) 894-6673 = Fax (575) 894-7767

December 31, 2020 CERTIFIED MAIL
7018 2290 0000 4262 8548

Ariel Dougherty

1580 Caballo Road

Truth or Consequences, NM 87901
Re: Smart Meter Ordinance 14-30
Dear Ms. Dougherty,

This will acknowledge receipt of yout appeal dated December 29, 2020. In feviewing your
documentation, it appeats that your ptimaty conteation is that you believe that the installation
of a “smart meter” could cause harmful health effects,

We appreciate your concern, and we want to assure you that the City considers the health and
safety of its citizens to be of paramount importance. We have done some research into this
topic, and we are enclosing copies of the following:

1. E-mail from Landis-Gyr (the contractor) dated November 10, 2020,
2. Landis-Gyr talking points

Based upon the foregoing, the City administration considers the installation and operation of
“smnart meters” to be safe and effective. Accordingly, your appeal is denied, If you wish to
pursue yout appeal, you have the right to have this matter considered by the City Commission.
If you wish to pursue this matter with the City Commission, please notify us in writing by no
later than January 11, 2021.

KD gfztﬂ ) T

BoFEasley, / Morris Madrid, Juiod Nabin,
Electric Depattment Director City Manager City Attorney




Ariel Dougherty
1580 Caballo Road, Truth or Consequences, NM 87901

Appeal \[6
of
Ordinance Sec 14-30 (e) 3 2021

L/}
City of Truth or Consequences, NM y Q‘QIQ |

filed December 18, 2020

Based on (e) Appeal of City Ordinance Sec 14-30 I hereby Appeal the installation of a smart
meter on my premises based on health grounds and existing defacto exceptions.

First, the most pressing challenge is whether the CITY Electric Department will turn off my-or
any others who appeal—electricty at any point during the appeal process. I respectfully request that the
CITY state in writing your policy and intention regarding disconnect and the appeal process. I thank
you for re-instating Ron Fenn's electricity. Unfortunately, it has left a large sting not solely on Mr.
Fenn, but really on all us citizens. It caused alarms as well with officials in the major law enforcement
agency of our state. The act disregarded citizens' right to due process.

Foremost, at the start, I would like to underscore in the twenty-three years, 276 billing cycles, 1
have never once received any word or complaint from the electric department that my electric meter
was un-readable. Therefore any complaint or problem the CITY has about dogs, needing a key or not
having access to seeing the electric meter for any reason do not apply to the reading of the meter on
my property. Fifteen concerns were bullet pointed in the minutes of the Special Meeting Janurary 29",
2020 in a presentation by Electric Department Director Bo Easley [Attachment A]. Among those
concerns, this one is most disturbing to me: “We won't be exposed to hazards.” Mr. Easley's “we”
refers to the CITY's dozen or so electrical workers. He is not thinking about us citizens. Shouldn't
‘“we”, the citizens, be a concern is this equation? The CITY is required by law to be accountable to
workers and citizens' welfare equally. Now we 4,149 electric customers, really the owners of this
electric utility, are the brunt of the hazards.

At the heart of this appeal is my right to protect my health from potential hazard(s) vs the CITY's
right to have an easier, seemingly more convenient way to read my electric meter that was never prior
a problem.

Already I have had cancer—diagnosed in August 2017. [see Attachment B] Cancer is a disability
under the Americans for Disability Act. Treatment caused neuropathy—destroyed nerve endings in my
hands and feet, leaving feelings of heightened coldness and aggravation. At the urging of my surgeon I
had DNA testing. A not commonly discussed gene mutation, CHEK?2, makes me 4.74 times more
susceptible to breast cancer than other women my age and race. I am at higher risk for other cancers as
well. [see Attachment C] I remain under on-going care of an oncologist and surgeon. [See Attachment
D]

Ariel Dougherty APPEAL Ordinance Sec 14-30 Smart Meter December 18, 2020 page 1



While there is currently no definable study that shows smart meter's extremely-low-frequency
(ELF) cause cancer in humans. Concurrently, nor are there any definable studies that prove that EFEs
DO NOT cause cancer in humans. I err on the later. In the CITY"s desire to make work easier in the
electric department it failed entirely to investigate the harm that smart meters can do on it citizens,
especially how electromagnetic emissions would effect its sizable elderly population. There are,
bowever, studies in rats. Rats are often used in pre-human studies. (NIH study
mmmmwmmmmmu see Attachment F, in a separate pdf). The
studies show "exposure to extremely-low-frequency (ELF) fields are cancer risks — including
leukemia, brain tumors, and breast cancer.” ELFs also affect the rat's nervous system. My nerves are
already compromised. Brain tumors are a major form in which my cancer can mastisize. Where I can
in my life I have taken steps to eliminate many cancer agents—such as sugar-as much as possible.
When there are other alternatives or ways to reduce even potential cancer agents, that is my right to
protect my health. Even the American Cancer Society, as I stated in a certified letter to City Manager
Madrid on November 23, 2020, acknowledges that smart meter's constant emissions “are a possibe
carcinogenic to humans.” (https./www.cancer.org/. /cancer-causes/radiation-exposure/.
meters.html ). My letter to Mr. Madrid was a request to have the smart meter installation waived on my
property. He has not replied.

While the CITY approved of the installation of smart meters in its August 27, 2019 Commission
Meeting, it did not convey anything about the installation process having or not having an opt-out
mechanism. However, in Mr. Easley's presentation under the fitting heading of “Benefits of the
System” as recorded in the CITY Commission Meeting Minutes [see Attachment E, especially page 2
(pg S of the minutes)] Director Easley notes that “40-50 meters at most will have to be read
manually.” This is effectively a defacto op-out process acknowledging that NOT ALL meters in the
city will be smart metered. And that some meters can continued to be visually read. On the 3" page
of Attachment E is something I would question [marked with a green circle]. I note this was a
Commission meeting that did not allow for public comment.

Last, the CITY must consider the current placement of the present electric meter on my premises.
I believe, over time, the placement of electric meters on properties was historically random. Meter
placement was done at the convenience of the electric department from the proximity of the location of
the electrical pole to the most convenient spot on the property. Hence, there is no consistency. Many
meters are accessed through backyards on the back of houses. Sometimes, they are on the South side
of a house; next door, on a North wall. It is random, helter-skelter. Their placement is not designed or
choosen by the customer. Mine, while easily read from the street, is literally five feel from where I
sleep. I see no reason, in fact it is unacceptable, to have the constant emission from a smart meter
beaming rays for over a third of my day so utterly close. Especially, as I have already stated, my
nervous system is currently altered and I am cancer prone to brain tumors. When the Electric
Department needs “to read” my meter primarily once a month—to record the amount of my electric
use—I believe the other 719 hours that a smart meter will emit ELFs (RFs or EMFs depending on
study terminology) are entirely superfluous and counter to my health. Any other potential electrical
problem-rare—can easily be taken care of by a telephone call. (Another one of the fifteen bullet
points!) Being without electricity for fifteen minutes—which happens frequently via our electrial
system--or even a few hours is far more acceptable than the constant 24/7 electromagnetic rays of a
smart meter.

Ariet Dougherty APPEAL Ordinance Sec 14-30 Smart Meter December 18, 2020 page 2



Based on two reasons:
1) onthe CITY's failure to investigate thoroughly well documented health and other known risks
— including fire hazards — of these smart meters; and

2) that exceptions (opt-outs) already exist defacto built into the CTTY's smart metering
methodology

I request the CITY to protect my welfare, as it is one of your major responsibilities, and waive
the placement of a smart meter on my property.

In exchange, I am more than willing to once a month (regularly on the 10th, 11th or 12th)

provide a photo of my present meter’s readings. I am confident such a solution is more than
workable.

Thank you for this opportunity to submit these critical reasons to keep my current meter.

%'«//aﬂ—/ ;

Ariel Dougherty

1580 Caballo Road

Truth or Consequences,
New Mexico 87901-3013

575 - 740 — 5868
ArielCamera@gmail.com

Ariel Dougherty APPEAL Ordinance Sec 14-30 Smart Meter December 18, 2020 page 3



Attachment A Ariel Dougherty — Smart Meter Appeal — December 18, 2020

CITY COMMISSION JANUARY 29, 2020 SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES

10/25/2017: City Commission Meeting
11/20/2017: PUAB Meeting
12/13/2017: City Commission Meeting
2/28/2018: City Commission Meeting
3/2018 - 7/2018: Intemal Research
8/20/2018: PUAB Meeting
12/12/2018: PUAB Meeting
5/10/2019: RFP Advertisement 5/10-6/11
7/24/2019: Commission Meeting
8/27/2019:Comm RFP Award
9/16/2019: Contract Signed
12/16/2019: PUAB Mesting

City Manager Madrid stated the other thing that has not been part of the discussion in
regard to the smart meters is the way it allows the city to manage the system itself. In
real time, especially in the event of an emergency, our emergency management would
be centralized and we would have real time information.

City Manager Madrid then asked Electric Department Director Easley to give an update
on how this is meant to be an upgrade and to improve our efficiency.

Electric Department Director Easley explained the difficulties a meter reader encounters
while reading meters which included:
e The meters readers have to deal with aggressive dogs.
o 6ft fences built around properties, and vegetation growing during the summer
time so it is hard for them to access some of the meters.
Some meters are being enclosed on back porches.
Some people have locked gates so they have to deal with multiple keys to get
into some yards to read meters.
Some customers do not want meter readers on their property.
e Our meter readers read an average of 200 plus meters a day, and holiday
seasons require more meters to be read to get ahead of schedule.
It is extra work for meter readers if another meter reader is on vacation or sick.
A meter reader will walk 6 miles a day on a daily basis, which will equal 108
miles a month walked by each meter reader.
The meter readers are also exposed to injuries while reading meters.
The benefits to our AMI meter reading system is that the Utility Office will have

the ability to read meters in a shgger time period.
‘ e We won't be exposed to hazards.
There will be less walking and ng for the meter readers.

e This will free up a meter reader to go back to the Electric or Water Department
crew.

¢ The Utility Office will have accurate readings and more accurate billing cycles.
It will also benefit us when we have power outages because we will then know
where the outage is located, and the power outages can be restored quicker.

Page 7 of 10

Avriel Dougherty APPEAL Ordinance Sec 14-30 Smart Meter December 18, 2020 page 4



ATTACHMENT B - Ariel Dougherty — Smart Meter Appeal — December 18, 2020

Based on HIPAA rules I seek to protect my own medical records. I authorize no one who sees or
considers this information to discuss it with anyone outside of being on a panel or review process in
this appeal.

This is a summary of a patholgy report I received August 23, 2017.

Pathology Consultants of New Mexico created the report.
RIGHT BREAST MASS AT 7 O'CLOCK, CORE BIOPSY:
Infiltrating ductal cacinoma — Grade 2

Tumor size: 0.9 cm

HER2 - Overexpressed, 3+

If necessary 1 will provide one paper copy of this 3 page report for participants who
sit in person on an appeal panel or process that reviews my Smart Meter Appeal.
That single copy will available for that session and be returned to me at the end of
the review. It will not be provided to anyone except in my presence and under my
gaze to protect it from being used in any other way than this determination.

Ariel Dougherty APPEAL Ordinance Sec 14-30 Smart Meter December 18, 2020 page 5



ATTACHMENT C - Ariel Dougherty — Smart MeterAppeal — December 18, 2020

Based on HIPAA rules I seek to protect my own medical records. I authorize no one who sees or
considers this information to discuss it with anyone outside of being on this panel or review process in
this appeal.

The below is a summary of a genetic test I took January 30, 2018.

INVITAE conducted the genetic testing

provided by clincial team: Linda Smith

Positive Result: Pathogenic variant identified in CHEK2

“The CHEK2 gene is associated with an increased risk for autosomal dominant
breast, colon, thyroid and prostate cancers” (page 2)

Women with CHEK2 -— for breast cancer — “the cumulative risk age at 70
years is 37%....compared to 7.8% for the average Caucasian woman in the
general population.” (page 3)

The above translates into my having a 4.74 greater chance
of getting breast cancer than other women of my age and
race.

If necessary I will provide one paper copy of this 6 page report for participants who
sit in person on an appeal panel or process that reviews my Smart Meter
Appeal. That single copy will be available for that session and be retumned to me at
the end of the review. It will not be provided to anyone except in my presence and
under my gaze to protect it from being used in any other way than this
determination.

Ariel Dougherty APPEAL Ordinance Sec 14-30 Smart Meter December 18, 2020 page 6



ATTACHMENT D A ghe Sman Man Acped Decant

Center

December 17, 2020

Re: Ariel Daughtery
DOB: 05/21/47

To Whom it May Concern:

| am writing on behalf of my patient Ariel Daughtery, who is being monitored for a
history of breast cancer. She has finished treatment but continues to be in follow
up

Sincerely,

Pl
Parikshit Padhi. M.D
Hematology/Oncology
Memorial Cancer Center
2530 S. Telshor Bivd_, # 107, Bldg. C
Las Cruces, NM 88011
T:575.521.1554
F:575.556.1754

Au--u A% o) F 000 am N anagaNe
. C mmmmm
urunn-mm n-n

Phone 575-521-6727 | Sas Med Onc $75-956:1754 | mmcicorg

Ariel Dougherty APPEAL Ordinance Sec 14-30 Smart Meter December 18, 2020 page 7



ATTACHMENT XE page 1 Ariel Dougherty Smart Meter Appeal  December 18, 2020
CITY COMMISSION AUGUST 27, 2019 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

Supernintendent of Truth or Consequences Schools District Randy Piper introduced Dr
Renee Garcia and Stephanie Brownfield to provide additional information.

Dr. Renee Garcia explained the main benefit of the JIAC Agreement is the collaboration
that takes ptace. They usually have a Joint JJAC meeting with the Office of Substance
Abuse Prevention and it brings together stakeholders in the community. Their goal in
collaboration with THE CLUB is to make sure that our students are safe, are in school,
and are achieving at the highest level possible. They cannot share a lot of sensitive
information with outside agencies so having it within the schools will enabte them to
address those issues in a very timely manner so they can triage and find the support
that the students need.

Ms. Stephanie Brownfield added they have been working on finding a Coordinator and
Jaytah Pendleton is a possible candidate for the position. She will be able to travel and
work with the students. One of the things they will be working on at the High School is
working with students who have missed a few days of school. If they start counseling
early, then they can possibly prevent il from going to a 10-day truancy to where the
students are out on the street and doing things they maybe shouldn’t be doing. Ms
Pendleton also has a Diversion Program where she does individual sessions, a
Mentoring Program and a Needs Assessment Program.

Judge Sanders has gone to their meetings and they had a table with all of the Principals
involved as well as with Ms. Pendleton. The next meeting will be on the 3™ and they will
have stakeholders such as Mercedes Murphy. Bobbie Sanders, Rita Kraken, Clint
Wellbomn, and all of the Stakeholders that will assist us in helping our students, because
we want them to succeed

Mayor Pro-Tem Clark confirmed this is just a pass-through of the city.

City Manager Madnd recommended that the motion include with the language to be
clarified by both parties and he will then work with City Attorney Rubin to clarify that
language. and they will make sure they agree on it with Superintendent Piper. At that
point they will fully execute the agreement.

Mayor Pro-Tem Clark moved to approve the concept of Sub-Contractor
Agreoment with Truth or Consequences Municipal School District for the 2019-
2020 Juvenilo Justico Advisory Council (JJAC) through Children, Youth, and
Families Division (CYFD) to the city and the schools and authorize City manager
Madrid to make the necessary changes to tho contract. Commissioner Baca and
Commissioner Szigeti seconded the motion. Motion carriod unanimously.

2. Discussion/Action: Award RFP No. 18-19-007 for Advanced Metor
tinfrastructuro (AMI) Project to LNG City Manageor Madrid:

Etectnic Department Director Easley showed the presentation that was previously given
regarding the need for this project. The presentation included:

Page 4 of 7

Ariel Dougherty APPEAL Ordinance Sec 14-30 Smart Meter December 18, 2020

page 8



ATTACHMENTY E Page 2

CITY COMMISSION AUGUST 27,2019 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

e Obstacles encountered while reading meters include dogs; fences; vegetation
and locked gates.

220 meters are read a day on average.

Holiday Seasons require more meters read a day to stay on schedule.

It causes extra work if a meter reader is on vacation or sick.

Meter readers average 6 walking miles a day, which adds up to 108 miles a
month

e Meter readers are exposed to injuries while reading.

Benefits of the system:

e The ability to read meters in a much quicker time.

e The ability to read the meters accurately.

e The system is compatible with the Cities billing software and it logs data on the
customer’s usage on a points basis.

e The installation would take approximately 6 months.

e Every Meter will fit into residential meters. The only issues they will have will be
with a few commercial meters and those meters will be read manually. There will

\ be only 40-50 meters at the most that will have to be read manually.

" The City will take the appropriate steps to make the meters compatible with the
AMI System. Customers will not need to re-wire their buildings by any means.

e The meters will have a theft device on them and if the meter is tampered with it
will send a red flag back to the Utility Office.

City Manager Madrid explained the RFP process to the Commission stating that they
worked with experts to develop the proposals and they were published and sent out.
They had a pre-proposal conference for questions from the providers and then the
proposals were submitted and evaluated by a committee on a point's basis. The
committee met to review the results of the evaluations and those evaluations were done
individually and privately, then the committee met as a group to decide on the 3 final
candidates. The 3 final candidates were then called in for interviews and presentations
before the committee. After that the committee met a final time to determine the
recommendation to select a provider. At the last meeting the Commission approved a
negotiation with an appropriate provider and those negotiations have taken place.
During the negotiation the provider agreed to reduce the price by 8 % % which is the
amount we would have had to pay in Gross Receipts Tax and that brought the price
under the budgeted amount of $1 million dollars.

City manager Madrid then listed a few highlights of the system which included:
e The system will provide a visual map of where the meters are located.
e It will also pinpoint the location when service is out so power outages will be
addressed much quicker.
* The readings will be digital, more accurate, and are real time.
e We will also have the capability to activate and deactivate service without
sending anyone out into the field.

Page § of 7

Ariel Dougherty APPEAL Ordinance Sec 14-30 Smart Meter December 18, 2020 page 9



ATTACHMENT E = Page 3
CITY COMMISSION AUGUST 27, 2019 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

o (it will also give us the ability to provide customers with better information. For
example, if there is a dispute with the consumption, we can pinpoint the exact
time of consumption.

o There will be a cost savings that will be generated by not having the meter
readers out in the field all of the time because meter readers don't just cost their
salary, they cost in benefits, retirement, and insurance that we have to match.

o These savings are permanent so the system will more than pay for itself over a
period of time.

e This is also something that our providers will soon be moving to, so had we
chosen to delay this, the Sierra Electric Cooperative may have mandated this in
a few years anyway

* The last criteria we set in the selection of the provider, was the future capability
to incorporate the same concept for water meters and the reading of those
meters

Commissioner Szigeti moved to approve tho Award RFP No. 18-19-007 for
Advanced Moter Infrastructure (AMI) Project to LNG. Mayor Pro-Tem Clark
seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously.

G. REPORTS:
City Manager Madrid reported the following:

o Our new phone systems were set up last week and the conversion was
successful. We are now in the process of adapting and setting up groups. We will
probably be in this learning process for a couple of weeks. You may encounter
not being able to leave a voicemail for another couple of days, but for the most
part, the phone calls are going exactly to where they need to go.

¢ We brought in an Engineer to take a look at the possible use of the inflatable
dome at the Swimming Pool and there were some concerns with the placement
of the electrical outlets and the safety of the use of that dome during the winter
The engineer didn't like the way the design was set up and he deemed it unsafe
to use. With that Bo Easley contacted the Electrical Inspector from the
Construction Industries Division and asked him to take a look at it as well
Unfortunately, we didn't get a favorable review from him either so it does not took
like we will be able to use that dome. However, we are looking into alternative
designs and we can use some of the funds from the New Mexico Finance
Authority that has already been approved. We found a few designs from
companies that have done this in Canada, and it is not overly expensive. The
cost of a new pool is something that we cannot afford right now, but it is
something we should plan for in the future. Those designs will be reviewed by an
architect and from there we will develop cost estimates on a few different ideas to
enclose the pool in the future.

¢ He invited everyone to meet with him tonight at 6:00 p.m. here in the Chambers
as parnt of our Public Input Process.

City Attorney Rubin reported the following:
¢ None.

Page 6 of 7

Ariet Dougherty APPEAL Ordinance Sec 14-30 Smart Meter December 18, 2020 page 10



1172020 -

The effects of 30 mT electromagnetic fields on hippocampus cells of rats
ATTACHMENT F Ariet Doughety —  Smart Meter Appeal — December 18, 2020

SN' SURGICAL NEUROLOGY ) ScientificScholar®

INTERNATIONAL

'

Surg Neurol Int. 2016; 7: 70. PMCID: PMC4946261
Published online 2016 Jun 29. doi: 10.4103/2152-7806,185006 PMID: 27453795

The effects of 30 mT electromagnetic fields on hippocampus cells of
rats

Earzaneh Teimori, Amir A. Khaki.' Asghar Raj@y;&h,1 and Leila Roshangar

Department of Anatomical Sciences, Tabriz University of Medical Sciences, Tabriz, Iran
Department of Anatomical Sciences, Faculty of Medicine, Lorestan University of Medical Sciences,
Khorramabad, fran

Farzaneh Teimori: Farzanehteimory@yahoo.com; Amir A. Khaki: dr.aakhaki@yahoo.com; Asghar Rajabzadeh:

Dr.a_rajabzadeh@yahoo.com; Leila Roshangar: Lroshangar@yahoo.com
'Con‘espondlng author

Received 2016 Apr 20; Accepted 2016 May 19.
Copyright : © Surgical Neurology International

This is an open access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution-NonCommercial-
ShareAlike 3.0 License, which allows others to remix, tweak, and build upon the work non-commercially, as fong
as the author is credited and the new creations are licensed under the identical terms.

Abstract

Background:

Despite the use of electromagnetic waves in the treatment of some acute and chronic diseases,
application of these waves in everyday life has created several problems for humans, especially the
nerve system. In this study, the effects of 30mT electromagnetic fields (EMFs) on the hippocampus is
investigated.

Methods:

Twenty-four 5-month Wistar rats weighing 150-200 g were divided into two groups. The experimental
group rats were under the influence of an EMF at an intensity of 3 mT for approximately 4 hours a day
(from 8 AM to 12 PM) during 10 weeks. After the hippocampus was removed, thin slides were
prepared for transmission electron microscope (TEM) to study the ultrastructural tissue. Cell death
detection POD kits were used to determine the apoptosis rate.

Results:

The results of the TEM showed that, in the hippocampus of the experimental group, in comparison to
the control group, there was a substantial shift; even intracellular organelles such as the mitochondria
were morphologically abnormal and uncertain. The number of apoptotic cells in the exposed group
compared to the control group showed significant changes.

Conclusions:

hitps://www.ncbi.nim nih.gov/pmc/articles’PMC4946261/

1/15



121712020 -

The effects of 30 mT electromagnetic fields on hippocampus cells of rats
Similar to numerous studies that have reported the effects of EMFs on nerves system, it was also
confirmed in this lecture. Hence, the hippocampus which is important in regulating emotions, behavior,
motivation, and memory functions, may be impaired by the negative impacts of EMFs.

Keywords: Electromagnetic fields, hippocampus, rats

INTRODUCTION

Electromagnetic radiation is a combination of an electric field and a magnetic field perpendicular to
each other and in the direction perpendicular to the two fields which is distributed in space. Unlike
other waves, electromagnetic waves pass through vacuum. In general, waves including electromagnetic
radiation consist of four main characteristics of wavelength, frequency, speed, and amplitude. High-
frequency photons have considerable energy to break chemical bonds, and this part of the spectrum is
called as ionizing. A photon's energy to separate the chemical bonds is too low at low frequency, which
is called the non-ionizing part of the electromagnetic spectrum. Therefore, the biological effects of
electromagnetic waves can be divided into ionizing and non-ionizing parts. Non-ionizing radiation can
have adverse effects on human health such as headache, stress, fatigue, and anxiety.[26] Non- ionizing
radiation includes the radiation radiated from medical equipment such as mammography, magnetic
resonance imaging (MRI) and computed tomography (CT) scans or radiation from natural sources such
as X-rays, gamma rays, ultraviolet rays, and infrared radiation. Non-ionizing radiation includes rays
emitted from telecommunications equipment, cell phones and base transceiver station (BTS),
disinfectant systems, laser productive resources, microwave ovens, infrared beams, as well as rays of
home electric appliances such as hair dryers, vacuum cleaners, and washing machines. In the case of
adverse effects of electromagnetic fields (EMFs), there are different views and opinions that result in
further investigations associated with teratogenic, carcinogenic, hematological, immunological, and
neurological effects. Epidemiology studies have shown the relationship between occupational and non-
occupational exposure, especially exposure to extremely-low-frequency (ELF) fields and cancer risk
including leukemia, brain tumors, and breast cancer.[2,8,16]

It's reported that exposure by electromagnetic fields in children may be led to the increased white blood
cells and consequently the formation of leukemia.[]11] According to some researchers, exposure to ELF
fields may stop the secretion of melatonin, which is the hormone associated with sleep-wake rhythm. In
addition, melatonin protects against breast cancer; if melatonin levels are reduced, it can result in an
increase in the breast cancer incidence along with other primary factors.[24] By using a cohort study,
an epidemiological investigation by Savitz was conducted on mortality from cardiovascular diseases
(CVD) among electrical equipment workers exposed to ELF magnetic fields.[]8] In addition to the
risks of EMF on vital systems of the body, its applications should also be mentioned. Electricity with
high frequency is applied for diathermy on the body and low frequency electricity is used to measure
blood flow and skin resistance. Therapeutic applications of EMFs for hyperthermia (chemotherapy and
radiotherapy) include brain surgery and cancer with high frequency, along with lung impedance
measurement to determine the amount of fluid.[4] Diagnostic applications include MRI,
magnetocardiogram, magnetoencephalogram, magentocologram, and magnetortiongram.[1,14,15,24]
Among the organs sensitive to the oxidative stress caused by EMF,[2]] central nervous system tissues
may be more susceptible to serious damage. One of the critical parts of the system is the limbic system
because of its role in learning and memory. Limbic system is a part of the central nervous system
located among the cerebral cortex and hypothalamus. We know that the limbic system plays an
important role in emotions, behavior, motivation, and memory. Hippocampus formation (including the
hippocampus, dentate gyrus, and parahippocampal gyrus) is a part of the limbic system which impacts
the different aspects of emotional behavior through the hypothalamus and its communication with
autonomic nervous system, as well as its effects on the endocrine system. The effect on reaction to fear
and anger as well as emotions associated with sexual behavior is evident.

https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC4946261/

2/15



72020 ¢

The effects of 30 mT electromagnetic fields on hippocampus cells of rats
Moreover, according to some evidence, the hippocampus plays a role in converting recent memory to
long-term memory, and any damage to it causes severe memory impairment. Referring to the previous
studies, neurological disorders caused by electromagnetic waves involve memory loss, lethargy,
insomnia, and depression. Previous investigations have shown mild side effects such as headaches,
dizziness, temporary amnesia, sleep disorders, and reduction of learning ability, as well as remarkable
effects such as leukemia, and gene mutation, chromosomal abnormalities in humans and animals.
[19,16,22] Major effects of acute exposure to electric fields have been reported on the mood and
behavior of humans and laboratory animals. Relevant reports indicate that weakening of individuals’
reaction time, especially their attention, is due to the exposure to these fields. The major effect of
chronic exposure to electric field has been reported on growth, often slowing the growth process. The
evidence also shows that chronic exposure acts as a biological stimulus. In many cases, free radicals
produced by electromagnetic waves are reported to be the cause of a variety of diseases and cancers.[7]
Electromagnetic waves with an increase in free radicals level can disturb homeostasis systems such as
the cardiovascular and nervous systems.[5,6,7,20] Furthermore, studies show that less vulnerability to
electromagnetic radiation is caused in cells with higher antioxidant activities. The apoptosis process is
one of the important pathways induced by these waves. A brief reference to the process of apoptosis is
provided below. Perhaps the turning point for research on apoptosis is attributed to Kerr Wyllie and
Currie studies in 1972.[4] Apoptosis is a physiological mechanism of cell death and the controller of
development and homeostasis multicellular organisms. The cells usually die when they receive mixed
development messages. Apoptosis is responsible for removing cells in abnormal tissues such as tumors.
Apoptosis is controlled by the genetic system and is induced by external or internal factors such as
hormones, cytotoxic lymphocytes, anti-cancer drugs, cytokines, and gamma or ultraviolet rays.[16]
Despite the major differences between apoptosis and necrosis, sometimes morphological changes are
used to distinguish them from one another. Necrosis occurs in acute pathological conditions. Nuclear
chromatin compresses and disappears during the last stages. Swollen cytoplasm and membrane
organelles and cells are gradually destroyed and the cell is removed by phagocytes. On apoptosis, the
cells are fragmented with all contents and swallowed by macrophages. There are two pathways for
apoptosis. The extrinsic pathway induces apoptosis by proapoptotic ligands such as APO21/TRAIL and
CD95L/FASL as well as binding receptors. The second pathway is the internal or mitochondrial route
observed in cells with homeostasis disorders. This route is induced by protein family of BCL2.
Apoptosis is mediated by a group of proteases called caspases. Damaging elements of cell DNA lead to
an increased protein level of P53 and preapoptotic protein activity of P53 leads to the growth stop at
G1 or apoptosis induction. By considering apoptosis, the effects of EMFs on the central nervous system
tissue can be investigated. In this regard, the current research aims to examine the effects of EMF (3
mT power) on the hippocampus part of the nervous system.

SUBJECTS AND METHODS

Twenty-four 5-month Wistar rats weighing 150-200 g were used in this experimental study. The rats
were collectively kept in a standard condition at a temperature of 2 + 24°C, 12 h light and 12 h of
darkness, and humidity of 50—70 in a room with continuous ventilation inside metal cages. Food and
water were given to the rats without any restriction. The rats were assigned to two groups, that is,
experimental and control groups, with 12 rats in each group. The experimental group rats were exposed
to EMF at an intensity of 3 mT for approximately 4 h a day (from 8 AM to 12 PM) for 10 weeks. An
EMF generator device, producing a field of 3 mT, designed and manufactured in Medical Physics, was
used. The generator was made of according to the Helmholtz theory. With regard to this selection,
issues such as the need for achieving a uniform field and with certain intensity and different constraints
like the need for a suitable place for rats living inside the machine were the determinative. Considering
to the generator ampere consumption and its long time use during the day, to avoid overheating the
device proper ventilation, the ventilation system was installed on to. Generally, the generator consists

https://www.ncbi.nim nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC4946261/

3/15



- 1020 -

The effects of 30 mT electromagnetic fields on hippocampus cells of rats

of 2 windings of opposite direction which produce a uniform field in the center of the device where
animals are located. A uniform field was produced between the windings due to passing electricity with
alternating current and frequency of 50 Hz. At the end of the experimental period, at first, the rats were
anesthetized by a piece of cotton soaked in chloroform in a plastic container in the package. After
stopping the heartbeat, we proceeded to remove the head and skull. After the brain became visible, we
took the brain out of the skull hole seamlessly and carefully. Then, the hippocampus was removed and
washed with 0.1 M phosphate buffer at a pH of 7.4. Next, secondary stabilization was performed by
1% osmium tetroxide. After dehydration using ethanol, the samples were made transparent by using
propylene oxide. In the last phase, the samples were embedded in resin. Uranyl acetate and lead nitrate
using transmission electron microscopy (TEM) (LEO, 200 Germany) were applied for coloring of
toluidine blue semi-thin slices as well as thin slices. Cell death detection POD kits (Roche Company
made in Germany) were used for determining the apoptosis rate. Coloring was performed by toluidine
blue. Using these kits, apoptotic cell nucleus turned brown, while the normal cell nuclei retained the
toluidine blue color. In this section, the hippocampus samples were stained by TUNEL techniques,
therefore, apoptotic cells became visible as golden brown.

RESULTS

As mentioned previously, the aim of this study was to evaluate the ultrastructural and histochemical
changes resulting from electromagnetic waves at a frequency of 50 Hz and an intensity of 3 mT on the
hippocampus of rats’ brain after exposure to the EMF. Therefore, findings of the effects of EMFs on
hippocampal tissue among the groups exposed to the EMF, considering the mentioned terms and
conditions, and the control group without exposure to EMFs have been investigated. The results are
presented in two parts, that is, ultrastructural changes and histochemical examination. Ultrastructural
changes: As seen in Figure 1, which displays the electron micrograph of rats’ brain hippocampal tissue
section in the control group, the cross-section contains some sections of myelinated and free nerves
along with glial cells and some mitochondria [Figure 1). Figure 2 shows the electron micrograph of
adult rats’ brain hippocampal tissue section in experimental groups under the influence of EMF. The
presented cross-section contains some sections of myelinated and free nerves along with some glial
cells of dense core and compact chromatin. Moreover, the mitochondria are not in their natural state,
compared with the control group mitochondrial; crystals are erratic and vague. Figure 3 presents a
micrograph of a nerve cell in the control group rats’ hippocampus parenchymal tissue. As shown in the
figure, nerve cells with normal nucleus and organelles inside the cells including the mitochondria and
natural endoplasmic reticulum as well free ribosome particles are clear. Myelinated and free nerves
sections are clearly visible among the nerve cells. Figure 4 shows two nerve cells for the group under
the influence of EMF. As is clear from the figure, the nerve cells are damaged. Chromatin is clearly
visible compactly with clear marginalization, and the amount of intracellular organelles is decreased;
further, vacuoles are visible with a subtle membrane inside the cytoplasm. Moreover, intracellular
organelles such as the mitochondria are morphologically abnormal and uncertain. Photomicrography
from the hippocampus parenchyma of rats after the TUNEL method in the control group shows red
blood cells (RBCs), nerve cell nucleus, and loss of apoptotic cells [Figure 5]. Finally, photomicrograph
of hippocampus parenchyma after EMF exposure by TUNEL method shows the number of apoptotic
cells, which compared to the control group has a significant increase [Figure 6].

https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC4946261/ 4/15



Electron micrograph of rats’ brain hippocampal tissue section in the control group (red arrows show

myelinated and free nerves)

https://www.ncbi.nim.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC4946261/ 5/15



' l2/l7l2620 : The effects of 30 mT electromagnetic fields on hippocampus cells of rats

Electron micrograph of adult rats’ brain hippocampal tissue section in the experimental group (arrows

show myelinated and free nerves). Ne: Nucleus, Mic: Mitochondria

https://www.ncbi.nim.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC4946261/ 6/15



12/17/2020 The effects of 30 mT electromagnetic fields on hippocampus cells of rats

Figure 3

Micrograph of a nerve cell in control group rats’ hippocampus parenchymal tissue

https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pme/articles/PMC4946261/ 715



. ‘12/17/2(')20 . The effects of 30 mT clectromagnetic fields on hippocampus cells of rats

en i arate window
DEN 1N 4 SEP.

Figure 4
Micrograph of nerve cells in the experimental group. N: Nucleus cell, Mic: Mitochondria, AS: Astrocyte
cell, V: Vacuole

https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC4946261/ 8/15



12172020

Normal cell nuclei became toluidine blue in color and most cells have a normal shape. (Arrows show

normal cells)

e B —

https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC4946261/ 9/15



C 172020 The effects of 30 mT clectromagnetic fields on hippocampus cells of rats

Apoptotic cell nucleus turned brown and shows an increased number of after exposed to electromagnetic

field (arrows show apoptotic cells)

DISCUSSION

The results of the Bio Institute group research in 2009 showed that electromagnetic radiations from cell
phones’ high-pressure lines, telecommunications stations, and many other sources emitting
electromagnetic radiation are acceptable, permissible, and compatible to the standards of Federal
Communications Commission (FCC) in daily lives of humans. These radiations do not have health
risks. However, when humans are exposed for hundreds and thousands of times, and sometimes
permanently exposed to electromagnetic radiation, absorption level of radiations exceed the standard
limit, and thus their adverse effects develop. The results of this study showed that exposure to
electromagnetic fields of 50 Hz with 3 mT intensity leads to a significant increase in apoptotic cells. It
should be noted that these cells are mainly visible in the hippocampus glial cells. TUNEL technique in
the present study clearly showed apoptotic glial cells. It seems that reduction in the number of glial
cells and neurons in confirming the occurrence of apoptosis in neurons and glial cells, which can be
due to the field impact on cell programmed death and its incidence, should be considered. These
findings are consistent with studies conducted by Salford to examine the relationship between
pathological leakage of albumin from the blood—brain barrier and neuronal damage by pulsed
microwaves emitted from mobile. The results of this research revealed a significant destruction of

https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC4946261/ 10/15



- 1211772020

The effects of 30 mT electromagnetic fields on hippocampus cells of rats
neurons in the cortex, hippocampus, and basal ganglia of rats that were exposed to mobile radiation for
2 hours. Perhaps the cell death observed in this study is due to the production of free radicals in brain
tissue neurons of the irradiated mice.[19]

The current theory is compatible with the studies conducted by Lai and ef al. They examined the
effects of a magnetic field of 0.01 mT with a frequency of 60 Hz for 24 hours to assess the level of
DNA breaks in rats’ brain cells. Results have shown that high-intensity electromagnetic waves lead to
increase in apoptosis and necrosis in the brain cells of rats. This increase in mortality may be due to the
free radicals produced by electromagnetic waves that results in breaking DNA and nerve cells death.[3)]
Simonian et al. reported that hydroxyl radicals and nitric oxide particularly in brain cells may lead to
apoptosis and cell death.[22] These results are in line with the findings of Soleimani et al.[23] They are
also compatible with the present research findings that investigated the effects of EMFs of 3mT on
central nervous system (brain, cerebellum, spinal cord). Results indicated that cerebellar Purkinje cells’
size decreased compared to the controlled cerebellum, which could be because of cells activity
reduction.[22] Numerous studies have shown that EMF could also affect cells genome and results in
decreasing DNA repair or apoptosis. EMF also affects the cell membrane and through the impact on
glycoproteins affects intracellular processes such as intracellular enzyme operation, cytoskeleton, and
the cell nucleus. In confirming these findings, it has been shown that the contents of the light and
transmitters such as gamma-Aminobutyric acid (GABA) are reduced in Purkinje cells under the
influence of EMF.[9]

Other findings of this study on cerebellum reveal significant decrease in the number of Purkinje cells
under the influence of EMF that can be due to their effect on programmed cell death and apoptosis. In
addition, some findings show the effect of EMF on calcium homeostasis changes of membrane and in
stimulating the synthesis of ornithine decarboxylase as well as an increase in activity that alters the
expression of DNA synthesis.[17] Some studies refer to the relationship between the intensity and
duration of exposure to electromagnetic waves and the number of damaged neurons and its biological
effects.[12] Wei ef al. examined the effects of sinusoidal EMFs with an intensity of 1.2-0.3 gauss for
3-72 hours on the proliferation of human astrocyte cells. The resuits showed that electromagnetic
waves with a frequency of 60 Hz depending on the time and studied dose may increase the number of
human astrocytes. However, the waves had no effect on DNA synthesis of rat cortical astrocytes.[28]
Furthermore, Joubert et al. evaluated the apoptosis level of neurons cultured in in vitro environment of
rats’ embryo cortex that were exposed to mobile radiation for 24 hours. According to the results, there
was no significant difference in the apoptosis level of cultured neurons between the experimental and
control groups.[27] In addition, Takahashi examined the effects of induced mutation via
electromagnetic waves emitted by mobile. In this study no increase was observed in the number of
astroglias in the affected areas of the central nervous system and glial cells apoptosis among the mice
exposed to mobile waves with a frequency of 1.5 MHz for 2—4 weeks. Moreover, no evidence of brain
DNA damage and histopathological degeneration in brain was reported.[25] The results of the study by
Takahashi are consistent with the findings of previous researches in which the lack of mutation increase
in brain cells DNA is mentioned; however, these are in contrast with the findings of our research.
Perhaps the contrast is due to the short duration of exposure to EMFs compared to the duration of the
current research (10 weeks). Heterochromatic and shrinking of neural and glial cells through TEM
microscopic examination are other findings of this study. Thus, neural and glial cells exposed to
electromagnetic fields were damaged and had a dense core and compact chromatin with clear
marginalization. Heterochromatic and shrinking of cerebellar Purkinje cells as well as neural and glial
cells of brain and spinal cord are our other findings that were recognized by light microscopic and
TEM examination. To further confirm these findings, morphometric analysis showed that the average
of the nucleus diameter and the nucleus axial ratio decreased in the experimental group. All the
changes may represent reduction of metabolic activity of cells affected by EMF. Previous studies have
revealed that EMF breaks up DNA in rats’ brain cells. The adverse effects of EMF on chromosomes in

https://www.ncbi.nlm nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC4946261/ 11715



C 12172020

The effects of 30 mT electromagnetic ficlds o hippocampus oells of rats
metaphase and chromosomes failure in culture medium and chromatin structure changes have been
previously reported. In addition, EMF causes cross-linking of DNA, increasing apoptosis and necrosis
in brain cells. We also found out changes in organelles such as mitochondria and endoplasmic
reticulum. Dilatation of the endoplasmic reticulum and irregularity and ambiguity of the mitochondrial
crystals are some of those changes. Organelle changes may be due to the adverse impacts of field on
their membrane.

A similar examination conducted on the kidney structure of rats for 52 days and 1 hour in a day. The
rats were exposed to a field of low frequency (9450 MHZ). Due to light microscopic examination and
vacuolization, epithelium kidney tubules were observed in the apical and degenerative changes in the
glomerulus were realized. Inflation of organelles with membranes of mitochondria and endoplasmic
reticulum were observed through the examination by an electron microscope.[13] Another results
supporting the findings of the present study have been reported via histochemical methods, in which
the enzyme level of succinate dehydrogenase (SDH) and the menu amino oxidase (MAO) are
decreased under the influence of the field. It was also reported that in rats under the influence of a field
of 30 Mw/cm? damage to the mitochondria of the brain cortex lead to changes in transcription A-factor,
mitochondrial, and mRNA.[29] Permeability of brain—blood barrier under the influence of the field has
also been reported. This permeation is attributed to the thermal effects of EMF. Because increased
vascular permeability is due to the effects of histamine, basement membrane changes are likely because
of the effects of increased histamine secretion. There are many studies suggesting that myelinated
nerve fibers such as motor neurons are vulnerable to electromagnetic waves. These findings are in line
with the results of this study. At the same time, Terada conducted a study for investigation of
electromagnetic waves’ effects emitted from mobile devices on the human motor cortex motor. His
results suggested that exposure to electromagnetic waves for 30 minutes do not cause changes in the
motor cortex neurons or interneurons. McNamee et al. demonstrated that a field of 60 Hz for 2 hours is
not capable to damage DNA and increase the apoptosis in cerebellar granular cells in the mouse brain.
[10] According to the mechanism of EMF impact, in this case it can be assumed that EMF is an iron-
mediated process that increases the formation of hydroxy! free radical in the cell and causes breaking
of DNA bands and cell death. Cells with high iron absorption, for example, proliferating cells, and cells
with high metabolic activity, such as brain cells, are the most vulnerable cells to the EMF effects.

Examination of the proliferating cells shows that the most vulnerable time is during the phase G/S of
the cell cycle when transferrin receptors are expressed and too much iron is penetrated. Free radicals
produce large amounts of hydrogen peroxide in the presence of iron via the Fenton reaction. Cells with
high metabolic activity produce large amounts of hydrogen peroxide through the mitochondrial
electron transport, and therefore become more vulnerable to the effects of EMF. On the other hand, the
negative effects of EMF depend on the cells iron storage ability in the form of ferritin. For example,
liver cells can be less susceptible to the effects of EMF even when they are having a lot of iron input
because they contain lots of ferritin. Cancer cells are realized by transferrin receptors on the surface,
thus they have high iron absorption. The effects of free radicals are very extensive, however, there are
four reactions that are associated specifically with cell harassment: Membrane lipids peroxidation,
mitochondrial damage, creating crosslinking in proteins, and DNA damage. However, perhaps
damaging effects of electromagnetic waves are because of the body's rising temperature and producing
free radicals that both agents could be considered as damaging elements to the tissues of the body,
especially the nervous system. Therefore, in order to eliminate the negative impacts of these waves on
the nervous system, it is recommended that unnecessary and prolonged use of devices generating such
waves be avoided.

CONCLUSION

https://www.ncbi.ntm nih gov/pmc/articles/PMC4946261/

12/15



. 12172020 -

The effects of 30 mT electromagnstic fiekds on hippecampus cells of s
This study concluded that EMFs with any frequency and intensity can be damaging to the nervous
system. In this study we found that EMFs by increasing structural changes in cells and apoptosis in
them can alter the cells function at every position of it. Therefore, by avoiding the usage of these
stimulators, their negative effects can be reduced.
Financial support and sponsorship

Nil.

Conflicts of interest

There are no conflicts of interest.

Acknowledgment

We thank the library and website of medical faculty of Tabriz University to ensure more study.

Footnotes
http://surgicalneurologyint.com/The-effects-of-30-mT-electromagnetic-fields-on-hippocampus-cells-of-rats/
REFERENCES

1. Ainsh MC. 5 th Edition. USA: Mc-Graw-Hill, USA; 1986. Physics in medicine and Biology; pp.
296-9. [Google Scholar]

2. Aldrich TE, Easterly CE. Electromagnetic fields and public health. Environ Health Perspect.
1987;75:159-71. [PMC free article] [PubMed] [Google Scholar]

3. Henry Lai N, Singh P. Magnetic-field-induced DNA strand breaks in brain cells of the rat. Environ
Health Perspect. 2004;112:687-94. [PMC free article] [PubMed] [Google Scholar]

4. Herman D, Suti MD, Michael SH. Hyperthermia potentials as an anti-tumor agent. J Med Sci.
1974;34:122-9. [Google Scholar]

5. Ian M, Stephen P. Oxidative stress and cardiovascular diseases: Novel tools give (free) radical
insight. J Mol Cell Cardiol. 2009;47:372-81. [PubMed] [Google Scholar]

6. IARC Working Group on the Evaluation of Carcinogenic Risks to Humans. Nonionizing radiation,
Part 1: Static and extremely low frequency (ELF) electric and magnetic fields. IARC Monogr Eval
Carcinog Risks Hum. 2002:1380-1395. [PMC free article] [PubMed] [Google Scholar]

7. Joseph F. The role of Free Radicals in the nervous system, Oxidative Stress and Free Damage in
Neurology. 2011:1-17. [Google Scholar]

8. Marino AA, Becker RO. Biological effects of extremely low frequency electric and magnetic fields:
A review. Physiol Chem Phys. 1977;9:131-47. [PubMed] [Google Scholar]

9. Mausset A, Motpeyroux F, Privat A. Effects of radio frequency exposure on the GABAergic system
in the rat cerebellum: Clues from semi-quantitative immunohistochemistry. Brain Res. 2001;912:33—

46. [PubMed] [Google Scholar]

10. McNamee JP, Bellier PV, McLean JR, Marro L, Gajda GB, Thansandote A. DNA damage and
apoptosis in the immature mouse cerebellum after acute exposure to a 1 mT, 60 Hz magnetic field.
Mutat Res. 2002;513:121-33. [PubMed] [Google Scholar]

hitps:/fwww.ncbi nlm nih.gov/ipmc/articles/PMC4946261/ 13/15



< 121772020

The effects of 30 mT eloctromagnetic fields on hippocampus cells of rats
11. Meinert R, Michaelis J. Meta analyses of studies on the association between electromagnetic fields
and childhood cancer. Radiat Environ Biophys. 1996;35:118-24. [PubMed] [Google Scholar]

12. Miyakoshi J. Biological responses to extremely low frequency electromagnetic fields. J Dermatol
Sci. 2006;2:23-30. [Google Scholar]

13. Nergiz Y, Ketani A, Akdag Z, Resitersay A, Celik S. Effect of low-intensity microwave radiation
on rat kidney: An ultrastructural study. Turk J Med Sci. 2000;30:223-7. [Google Scholar]

14. Pankhurst QA, Connolly J, Jones SK, Dobson J. Applications of magnetic nanoparticles in
biomedical. J Phys D. 2003;36:167-81. [Google Scholar]

15. Repacholi MH. Low-level exposure to radiofrequency electromagnetic fields: Health effects and
research needs. Bioelectromagnetics. 1998;19:1-19. [PubMed] [Google Scholar]

16. Repacholi MH, Greenebaum B. Interaction of static and extremely low frequency Electric and
magnetic Fields with living system: Health effects and research needs. Bioclectromagnetics.

1999;20:133-60. [PubMed] [Google Scholar]

17. Robison JG, Pendleton AR, Murry BK, O’Neill KL. Decrease DNA repair rates and protection
from heat induced apoptosis mediated by electromagnetic field exposure. Bioelectromagnetics.
2002;23:106-12. [PubMed] [Google Scholar]

18. Sahl J, Mezei G, Kavet R, McMillan A, Silvers A, Sastre A, et al. Occupational magnetic ficld
exposure and cardiovascular mortality in a cohort of electric utility workers. Am J Epidemiol.

2002;156:913-8. [PubMed] [Google Scholar]

19. Salford LG, Brun AE, Eberhardt JL, Malmgren L, Persson BR. Nerve cell damage in mammalian
brain after exposure to microwaves from GSM mobile phones. Environ Health Perspect.

2003;111:881-3. [PMC free article] [PubMed] [Google Scholar]

20. Savitz DA, Liao D, Sastre A, Kleckner RC, Kavet R. Magnetic field exposure and cardiovascular
disease mortality among electric utility workers. Am J Epidemiol. 1999;149:135-42. [PubMed]
[Google Scholar]

21. Senthil Kumaran V, Arulmathi K, Srividhya R, Kalaiselvi P. Repletion of antioxidant status by
EGCG and retardation of oxidative damage induced macromolecular anomalies in aged rats. Exp
Gerontol. 2008;43:176-83. {PubMed] [Google Scholar]

22. Simonian NA, Coyle JT. Oxidative stress in neurodegenerative diseases. Annu Rev Pharmacol
Toxicol. 1996;3:83—106. [PubMed] [Google Scholar]

23. Soleimani R, Allahvaisie O, Khaki AA. Electromagnetic field effects on rat's cerebella
ultrastructure. Sci J Kurdistan Univ Med Sci. 2006;11:1-9. [Google Scholar]

24. Stevens RG, Davies S. The melatonin hypothesis: Electric power and breast cancer. Environ Health

Prespect. 1996;104:135-40. [PMC free article] [PubMed] [Google Scholar]

25. Takahashi S, Inaguma S, Cho YM, Imaida K, Wang J, Fujiwara O, Shirai T. Lack of mutation
induction with exposure to 1.5 GHz electromagnetic near fields used for cellular phones in brains of
Big Blue mice. Cancer Res. 2002;62:1956—60. [PubMed] [Google Scholar]

26. Tenforde TS. Biological interaction of extremely-low-frequency electric and magnetic fields.
Biochem Bioenergetics. 1991;25:1-17. [Google Scholar]

https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC4946261/

14/15



12/17/2020 The effects of 30 mT electromagnetic fickls oa hippocampus oclls of tis
27. Vanessa J, Philippe L, Marylene C, Sylvie B, Catherine Y. No apoptosis is induced in rat cortical
neurons exposed to GSM phone fields. Bioelectromagnetic. 2006;28:115-21. [PubMed]
[Google Scholar]

28. Wei M, Guizzetti M, Yost M, Costa LG. Exposure to 60-Hz magnetic fields and proliferation of
human astrocytoma cells in vitro. Toxicol Appl Pharmacol. 2000;162:166-76. [PubMed]
[Google Scholar]

29. Xie Y, Jiang HH, Zhang GB, Yu JH. Effect of microwave irradiation on neurocyte mitochondrial
ultrastructure and mtTFA mRNA expression in rat's cerebral cortex and hippocampus. Zhonghua Lao
Dong Wei Sheng Zhi Ye Bing Za Zhi. 2004;22:104-7. [PubMed] [Google Scholar]

Articles from Surgical Neurology Intemational are provided here courtesy of Scientific Scholar

https://www.ncbi.nlm nih.gov/pmc/articles PMC494626 1 / 15/15



%

3 AN e
Y A LN 4 T W
X -;‘;‘:: i ]F\l:‘:""‘[‘d n

COUNTY OF ‘*.w""

=

.i“,ﬂ i Lk
: f'A i*a-u;: ‘./ ;
Y B E g2 ¢ <
& ') ',I | 1 11C
3 ;ﬂ b jl e ; ~‘
= .’y":‘h g

Dougherty Smart Meter Appeal Sec 14-30(e)




Ariel Dougherty
1580 Caballo Road
Truth or Consequences, NM 87901

APPEAL : REQUEST NO CONNECTION OF SMART METER DUE
TO HEALTH RISKS AND BASED ON CITY STATED EXISTING
EXEMPTIONS; AND, FAILURE OF CITY TO ADHERE
TO MY DUE PROCESS RIGHTS

to January 11, 2021

Truth or Consequences City Commissioners:

Sandra Whitehead, Mayor
Amanda Forrister, Mayor Pro-Tem
Randall Aragon, Commissioner
Paul Baca, Commissioner
Frances Luna, Commissioner

505 Sims Street

Truth or Consequences, NM 87901

In accordance with Sec 14-30 of the Truth of Consequences Municipal Code pursuant to Sec 14-
(e) I submit this appeal.

Facts stated in this appeal:

1. In 23 years, or 276 billing cycles, I have never once received any complaint from the CITY
Electric Department that my electric meter was unaccessible or unreadable.

2. August 23,2017 I was diagnosed with cancer. (Exhibit A.)

3. Cancer is acknowledged as a disability under the Americans for Disabilty Act.

4. Due to an analysis of my DNA, a defective gene makes me 4.74 times more susceptible to
certain cancers than other women my age.

5. I'was one of some 265 signators on the citizen's petition: “An Ordinance imposing a ten (10)
year moratoriumprohibiting the acquisition, installation or maintenance of smart-meter
technology (AMI or other Real Time) within Truth or Consequences Utility jurisdiction,”
verified by the CITY clerk, December 2, 2019 (Exhibit B)

6. Electric Director Easley stated at the August 29, 2019 City Commission meeting “40-50 meters
at most will have to be read manually.” (Exhibit C)

7. At the January 29, 2020 Special Commission meeting the Commission neither approved nor

Dougherty Smart Meter Appeal Sec 14-30(e) Page 2



sent for public vote the Moratorim Ordinance, the only two choices available in NM State
Statute 3-14-18. (Exhibit D, especially page 8 ).

8. December 7, 2020 I refused the installation of the smart meter and received a written notice
hand delivered by Mr. Easley and signed by Manager Madrid that threatened to turn off my
electricity, in the Winter and amid Covid against NM state regulations/orders, in 15 days if I did
not comply.

9. December 18, 2020 I submitted my appeal to the Electric department pursuant to Sec 14-30(¢)
of the CITY's ordinance.

10. January 4, 2021 I received via certified mail a denial dated December 31, 2020 of my appeal to
Electric Director Easley, yet signed by Bo Easley, Morris Madrid and Jaime Rubin.

Lack of clarity and due process in the CITY's Appeal Process: Some Recommendations

Sec 14-30(e) states : “Any person disputing a disconnect notice or other action related to
utility service, will be provided a reasonable opportunity to appeal within the department, then to the
City Manager, and if dissatisfied with the City Manager's decision, to the City Commission is
accordance with written procedures established by the Electric Department.”

FEirst, no such “written procedures” exist.

Second, as the Deecember 31 denial is signed by both the Electric department director and the
CITY Manager they appear to have combined and or collaborated on their denials which on its face
appears to violate the processes as written in (e) Appeal.

Third, in their denial letter Easley, Madrid and Rubin fail entirely to address the second reason
that I brought forward in my December 18, 2020 appeal to the Electric Director: Point 2) that
exceptions (op-outs) already exist defacto built into the CITY's smart metering methodolgy. This
deprived me of due process (see below).

HENCE, of you five members of the Commission to whom I now appeal, I request two
considerations in your deliberation:

One: Only the five of you Commissioners shall deliberate and ask questions of me in your
public meeting. Because Bo Easley, Morris Madrid and Jaime Rubin have alreadty deliberated on this
matter they shall recuse themselves and remove themselves from these current deliberations; and

Two: Your responses to this appeal shall address every point raised. Such responses shall be

submitted in writing.

Dougherty Smart Meter Appeal Sec 14-30(e) Page 3



1. Potential Harm to Health

Radio Frequency (RF) emissions, the kind of emission from smart meters, is cumulative.
Environment, food, stress and genetics all play a part in cancer susceptibility and growth. To a large
extent I can control my intake of food, for instanc